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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

please take not ice that the Annual Meetirrg of Stockholder"s of ALPHALAND

CORPORATION rvi l l  be held on Thursdal ' .  28 August 2014 at 3:00 p.rn. at  The Cit l '  Club at

Alphalancl Makat i  Place, Malugay Street corner A1'ala Aventte. Makat i  City to disct- tss the lbl lo$' ing:

A G E N D A

1 . Cal l  to order
2. Cert i f icat ion of service of t rot ice and quorum
j.  Review and approval of  the rr inutes of the previotts rneet ing held on Apri l  2"

2 0 r 3
4. Apnual report  of  rnanager.nent and approval of  the audited f inancial  statelrel l ts for

the  f i sca l  year  ended Decer lber  31 .2013 conta ined in  the  Compan) ' ' s  A l ln t ta l

Repor t
5. Rat i f lcat ion and approval of  the issuance of up to 1.374.903,866 shares ot

cortr lnon stock of ALPHA. at the issue pr ice of Php2.50 per share, as f inancing

alternatives in order to augment funding of its af/il iales' projects for the vear

2014,  cons is t ing  o f  the  fo l lo rv ing :
5.1 Issuance of up to 600.000.000 of comrnon stock of ALPHA to RVO Capital

Ventures  Corpora l  io l t :
5.2 Issuance of Lrp to 108.336.866 shares of commolr stock of ALPHA to

m inor i ty shareholders:
5.3 Issuance of up to 557,567,000 shares of comrnon stock of ALPHA to pa1' for

the acquisi t ion of land located in I togon, Benguet fbr the Alphaland BagLrio

Mountain Log Homes Pro.iect: and
5.4 Issuance of up to 109.000,000 shares of common stock to nert  investors.

6. Antendment of the Art ic les of Incorporat ion to ref lect the complete address of the

principal of f ice of the Companl,
7 .  Arneldrnent of the By-laws to al lorv part ic ipat ion of directors in board rneet ings

bv conference cal l  or s imi lar means
8 .
o

1 0 .
i l .
1 2 .
1 3 .

Approval of  the Cornpany's Stock Option Plan
Ratification and approval of all acts of the Board of Directors (as r'vell as

cornmit tees) and Managernent since the Last Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Elect ion of nrember of the Board of Directors ( including Independent Directors)

Appointment of External Auditor
Other Matters
Adiournment

For purposes of the meeting. onlv stocklrolders of record as of July '31.2014 are ent i t led to not ice of,

and to vote at.  the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Copies of t l re rninutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on 2 Apri l  2013 rvi l l  be avai lable

Llpon feqLrest.

Registrat ion staf is at 2:30 p.m. For your convenience in register ing your attendance, please have

avai lable sorne fbnn of ident i f icat ion. such as vour dr iver 's l icense. passpof i  or other form of

ic lent i f icat ion issued by any agency of the government of the Phi l ippines. For representat ives of

corporate stockholders. k indly br ing a copy of the Board Resolut ion authoriz ing you to vote t l te shares

of the corrpany you represent.

Sholld 1'ou be unable to attend the meeting in persort. you Inay lvant to execute a proxy in favor of a

representative. The giving of such proxy wil l  not affect your r ight to vote in person. should you decide

to attend the Annual Meeting.
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SECIruTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 2O-IS

Check the Appropriate box

f l Preliminary Information Statement

[l 1.fi nitiue lnformation Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Province, country or other jurisd iction of incorporation or
organization

TNFORMATTON STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIOI']-'$6F THE ., . , . .
SECURITIES REGULATION cODE ; :i.1 

ltt Y:ii,;: ,-,.1,._,'.:it,,l.t't:

Mac ondray P I a s tic s, Inc.)

l . Philippines

4 .

5 .

6 .

SEC Identifi cation Number

BIR Tax ldentification Number

Address of Principal Office

r83835

001-74G612

Alphaland Southgate Tower" 2258 Chino Roces Avenue corner
E D S.q=-14-q!eriexy,LzJ :

9 .

7 .

8 .

Registrant's telephone number, including area code (632) 337-2031

Date, time and place of meeting ofsecurity holders
Date 28 August, Thursday
Time 3:00 p.m.
Place The City Club at Alphaland Makati Place, Malugay St' cor. Ayala Ave.' Makati

City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders

4 Ausust 20I4

Securities registered pursuant to Section 8 and 12 ofthe Code or Sections 4 and 8 ofthe RSA
(information ofthe number ofshares and amount ofdebt is applicable only to corporate registrants)

Number of Common Stock Outstanding or
Amount of Debt Outstandine as of March 3 l.

2014
33s9,226217
P7,398,703,040

l l , Are any or all ofthe registrant's securities listed on,a Stock Exchange?
Yes '/ No

Ifyes, disclose the name ofsuch Stock Exchange and the class ofsecurities listed therein:

Philiopine Stock Exchanqe Common Shares

i 0

Title of Each Class

Common Stock
Debt Outstanding

12.



We are not asking you for a proxy and you are requested not to send us a proxy.

A.  GENERAL INFORMATION

Item l. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Stockholders

Date :
T i r re :

28 August. Thursdal'
3 :00  p . t r .

P lace :  The Ci t l 'C lub at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  Malugal '  St .  cor .  41,a la Avenue.  Makat i  Ci t l '

Mai l ing Address of  the Compan,v

The conplete mail ing address of Alphaland Corporation (hereinafter, ' 'ALPHA", the "Corrrpany" or the
"Corporation") is:

ALPHALAND CORPORATION
The Penthouse. Alphaland Southgate Tor.ver
2258 Chino Roces Avenue corxer  EDSA
Makat i  Ci ty  1232.  Phi l ipp ines

Record Date

The record date fbr the purpose of determining the stockholders entit led to notice of. and to vote at. the
Annual  Meet ing of  the Stockholders is  31 July  2014 ( the "Record Date ' ' ) .

Approxirrate Date of First Release of Infonnation Statement

The approxirnate date on which this lnformation Statement rvil l  be first sent out to the stockholders of the
Compan l , i s  on  4  Augus t  2014 .

Item 2. Dissenter's Right of Appraisal

There are no matters or proposed actions as specified in the attached Notice of Annual Meeting that ma),
g ive r ise to a possib le ererc ise b l ,shareholders of  thei r  appraisal  r ights or  s i rn i lar  r ishts as prov ided in ' f i t le
X of  the Corporat ion Code of  the Phi l ipp ines.

Pursuant to Sections 8l and 42 of the Corporation Code. shareholders of the Cornpany mav erercise their
r ight  of  appraisal  in  the fo l lo , 'v ing instances:

(i) any arnendment of the arlicles of incorporation which has the effect of changing or restricting the
rights ofany stockholder or class ofshare, or ofauthorizing preferences in respect superior to those
ofoutstanding shares ofany c lass.  or  ofextending or  shor tening the tem ofcorporate er is tence:

(i i) sale, lease, exchange, mofigage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the propertv
or  assets of the corporat ion:

(i i i) incurring, creating or increasing bonded indebtedness;
(iv) increase or decrease ofcapital stock;
(v) lnerger or consolidation ofthe corporation with another corporation or other corporations;
(v i )  d issolut ion of  the corporat ion:
( v i i )  dec la ra t i ono fs tockd i v i dends :
(v i i i )  removal  of  d i rectors;
(ir,) extension or l inritation of corporate tenn;
(x) investrnent of corporate funds in another corporation or business or for any' purpose other than the

2AI1 SEC Fornt  2A- lS
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prirnarr,, purpose for which the corporation was orsanized;
(xi) delegaticlt to the board of directors of the porver to amcnd or repeal b1'-lari 's or adopt nerl br'- lau's.

Each share of  s tock is  ent i t led to one vote dLl r ing stockholders '  n teet ins.s.  Horvever .  at  a l l  e lect ions of

d i rectors"  ever) ,s tockholder  ent i t led to vote lnay vote such nurnber of  s tocks for  as Inanv persons as t l tere are

di rectors to be e lected.  or  he mav cumulate said shares and g ive one candidate as lnan) 'votes as the nunlber

of  d i rectors to be e lected ntu l t ip l ied by the nunrber  of  h is  shares shal l  equal .  or  he rnal 'd is t r ibute therr  on the

same pr inc ip le arnong as rnan) 'candidates as he shal l  see f i t .

The election of directors rna;- onl.v be held at a rneeting convened for that purpose at rvhich stockholders

representing a rnajorit l of t l ie outstanding capital stock are present in person or by proxl'. Horvever, anv

vacanc)- in the board. other than by rernoval or expiration of terrn. may' be fl l led bv the rna.iorit l '  of the

remain ing d i rectors i f  s t i l l  const i tu t ing a quorLl l l l .

A shareholder  u 'ho shal l  have voted against  an-v. '  proposed act ion may ererc ise h is  appraisal  r ight  by 'making

a u'ritten demand on the Cot.npany u'ithin thirrl '(30) days after the date of the shareholders rneeting. Failure

to ntake the demand u, i th in the prescr ibed per iod shal l  be deemed a u 'a iver  of  the appraisal  r ight .  I f  the

proposed colporate action is intplemented, the Company shall pa)'the dissenting stockholder upon surender

of the stock certif icates representing his shareholdings in the Cornpany based on the fair value thereof as of'

the day prior to the date of the shareholders meeting, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in

anticipation of such corporate actions. provided that no payment shall be made to the dissenting shareholder

unless the Companl' has unrestricted retained earnings to cause such payment.

lf rvithin a period of sirt1,'(60) da;'s fron the date of the corporate action was approved br the stockholders.

the rv i thdrar . r ' ing stockholder  and the Company'cannot  agree on the fa i r  va lue of  shares.  i t  shal l  be

detenrined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons. one of whorn shall be narned by the

shareholder. another b-v the Corporation and the third by the tr.vo thus chosen. The findings of the ma-iority of

the appraiser  shal l  be f ina l  and thei r  arvard shal l  be paid b1 ' the Companv rv i th in tht r t l ' (30)  days af ter  such

arvard is made.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no txatter to be acted upon in rvhich any director or executive officer is involved or had a direct.

ind i rect  or  substant ia l  in terest  (except  t l ie  e lect ion ofd i rectors) .

No director has infbrmed the registrant. in ivrit ing or otherwise, that he intends to oppose an1, action to be

taken by ' the regis t rant  at  the Meet ing.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securit ies and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) Total Number of Shares Outstanding as of December 31, 2013: I .98,1.322.35 I contmon shares

Number of Votes per Share: One ( 1) vote per share.

(b)  Record Date:  Al l  s tockholders of  record as of  the c lose of  business on 3 l  . lu l r '2014 are err t i t led to

notice of, and to vote at. the Annual Meeting.

2011 SEC Fornt  20- lS
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Title of
Class

Name and Address of
Record Owner and

relationship with Issuer

Name of Beneficial
Ownership and

relationship with
Record Owner

Citizenship No. of
Shares

% Ileld

Comrrrot tI Masrickstar Corporation'
i  r t u  f  T o r r e r  l .  E n t e r p r i s e

I  Center .  6766 A1'a la
j  Auenue.  Makat i  Ci ty)
i  Stockholder

Er ic  O.  Recto -  Vice
Chairman and
Contro l l ing
Stockholder

F i l i p i no 709, .171. iJ0 21 .12 'h

Comlnon PCD Nonr inee
Corporation
(37rF Torver  1,  Enterpr ise
Center. 6766 Ayala
Avenue.  Mal<at i  Ci ty)
Stockholder

Alphaland Hold ings
(Singapore)  Pte.  Ltd.

- Beneficial Orvner of
these shares lodged
u'ith the PDTC

Non-F i l i p i no 5 r9,744,89126.19%

Conrmon Alphaland Hold ings
(Srngapore )  Pte.  Ltd.  -

( 8  C ross  S t . .  l 1 -00  PWC
R r r i l d i n o  Q i n o a n n r p \
u v , , v , , , 5 !

Stockholder

Ashmore Investment
Managed L imi ted
(AIML) -  Record
Orvner is orvned by
fLrrds managed b1'
A I M L

Ct.d't Sr., i.*
(Singapore) Ltd -

Beneficial Ou'ner

Singaporean 209.561.233 l 0 . 5 6 o o

Common Singaporean 49.608.0002.50'h

Cornrnon Boerstar Corporation Roberto V" Ongpin
and Eric O. Recto -

Beneficial Owners

F i l i p i no 167.788. .1308. - l6o  o

Common D.M. Wenceslao and
Associates,  lnc.

Beneficial Owner
same as Record Orvner

Fi l ip ino 1.17 .375.7007.43%

Cornrnon RVO Capital Ventures
Corporationr ( 1 7/F Torver
l .  Enterpr ise Center ,  6766
Ayala Avenue.  Makat i
Ci ty ' )
Stockholder

Roberto V. Ongpin -

Chairman and
Controll ins
Shareholder

Fi l ip ino t ' 12 ,656;7  43 1 . 1 9 %

Secur i tv  Ou'nership of  Certa in Record and Benef lc ia l  Orvners -  as of  December 31.20 l3

There are no delinquent stocks and the direct and indirect record of beneficial orvners of lnol-e than five

percent  (5%) of  comlnon shares of  the CornpanY are:

rThe shareholdings of Masrickstar Corporation have been voted in past shareholders' meetings b1' Mr. Eric
O. Recto.
2The sliareholdings of Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. have been voted in past shareholders'
rneet ings b1 'Mr.  Roberto V.  Ongpin.
sThe sharehold ings of  RVO Capira l  Ventures Corporat ion have been voted in  past  shareholders ' rneet ings by
Mr. Roberto V. Ongpin.

Except as stated above. the Board of Directors and Management of the Company have no kno*'ledge of any

person who, as at Record Date, rvas indirectly' or directly the beneficial orvner of more than flve percent of

the Company,'s outstanding shares of common stock or who has voting porver or investmettt por'r 'er rvith

respect to shares comprising lnore than five percent of the outstanding shares of common stock. There are no

persons holding more than 5% of the Cornpany's common stocks that are under a voting trust or sirnilar

agreement.

20l l  SEC Fornt  20- lS
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Securit,v Orvnersh ip of N4anagernent

The fb l lorv ing are the nurnbcl  of  shares of  conrmon stock orvned of  record and benef ic ia l l l  b1 ' the d i rectors

and execut ive of f lcers of the Cornpany and the percentage ofsharehold ings ofeach.  as at  December i l .

2 0 1 3 :

Title of
Class

Name of Beneficial
Owner

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership

Citizenship Percent

Contmon Roberto V.  Onenin Direct F i l i p i no 0 o o

Cornr-non Indirect 2 9 I . 9 4 r . 0 3 8 |  4.7 loio

Comr lon Eric  O.  Recto Direct I F i l i p i no 0 . 0 0 0  o

Cornmon lndi rect 756 .039 ,  I  I  7 22.51%

Conrrnon N,{ario A. Oreta Direct I F i l i p i no 0.00%
I nd irect 10.000.000 0.50%

Cornrnon Craig Webster Direc I B i t ish 0.000,6

Conrrnort Peter  Davies Direc I B i t i sh 0.00%
Common Cvrano A. Austria Direc 2.000 F i l i o i no 0.00%
Comrnon Dennis O.  Valdes Direc 1 0 0 F lp l l lo 0.00%
Comrnon Michael  Angelo

Patr ick M. Asper in
Direct 1 0 0 F i l i p i no 0.00%

Common Joanna O. Duarte D r00 F i l i p i no 0.00%
Comnron Rodolfo Ma. A

Ponferrada
Direct r00 F i l i p i no 0.00%

Conunon Marsarito B. Teves Direct 1 0 0 F l p l n o 0.00%

Comrlon Marr iana H. Yulo Di rec t 1 0 0 F l p rno 0.00%
Cor l r lon Ramon S. Anc Direct 1 0 0 F l p l l l o 0.00%
Cornr lon Jose P.  Levis te.  i r Direct 6.200 F lD l no 0.00%

Comr.non Mar io  J .  Locs in Direct r 0 0 F lD l l l o 0.009/o

Except  as d isc losed above.  the Company'has not  received f rom an1'of the d i rectors or  execut ive of f icers of

the Cornpany any statentent of orvnership, rvhether of record or beneficially, of tnore than 5% of the

Cornpan"u-' 's outstanding shares ol common stock. As knou'n by the Company. the aggregate number of

common shares or.vned directly b;- all key officers and directors as a group as at 30 June 2014 rvas

2.989.0 I  5 .508 common shares.

Changes in Contro l

Thele are no voting trust agreements or an)'other similar agreelnent that may result in a change in control of

the Company of rvhich the Compan,v- has any knowledge. No change in control of the Conipany' has

occurred since the beginning of its last f iscal year.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Pursuant to the Company By-Larvs. the directors are elected at each annual nteeting of stockholders b1'
s t o c k h o l d e r s e n t i t l e d t o v o t e "  E a c h d i r e c t o r i s e l e c t e d f o r a t e r m o f o n e ( 1 ) 1 ' e a r o r u n t i l  h i s s u c c e s s o r i s d u l ; '
e lected and qual i f ied,  unless he res igns,  d ies or  is  removed pr ior  to  such e lect ion.

The follorving names have been nominated to the Board of Directors for the ensuing y'ear:

l .  Rober lo V.  Ongpin ( incur lbent)
2.  Mar io A.  Oreta ( incumbent)

3.  Dennis O.  Valdes ( incumbent)

4.  Michael  Angelo Patr ick A.  Asper in ( incumbent)

5.  Cl , rano A.  Austr ia  ( incurnbent)
6.  Anna Bet t ina Ongpin ( incurnbent)
1 . Rodolfo Ma. A. Ponferrada (incurnbent)

8.  Joanna O. Duarte ( incurnbent)

9.  Jesusa Loreto A.  Are l lano-Aguda (CFO)

2011 SEC Forn 20-lS
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10.  Margar i to  B.  
- feves -  Independent  ( incurnbent)

I  L  Rol 'Joseph M. Rafb ls  -  Independent
12 .  V rc to r  C .  Maca l i ncag  Independen t
13.  Gregor io M. Araneta l l l  lndependent
l -1.  Edgardo Ansara -  Independent
I  5.  Peter  Favi la  -  Indenendent

The fo l lorv ing narnes have been norninated as mernbers of  the E,xecut ive.  Audi t .  Norninat ions and
Cornpensation Committees fbr the ensuing , '-eat':

Executive Committee
a.  Rober lo V.  Ongpin (Chair rnan)
b.  Mar io A.  Oreta
c.  Anna Bet t ina Ongpin

Audit Committee
a.  Malgar i to  B.  l 'eves (Chair rnani  Independent  Director)
b.  Peter  Favi la  ( tndependent)
c.  Vic tor  C.  Macal incag ( lndependent)

Nominations Committee
a. Roberto V. Ongpin
b. Mario A. Oreta
c. Ro,v Joseph M. Rafols (lndependent)

ComDensation Committee
a. Roberto V. Ongpin
b.  Anna Bet t ina Ongpin
c.  Gregor io M. Araneta ( lndependent)

Tl re aforernent ioned nont inees rvere nonr inated to the Nominat ions Cornmit tee b)  shareholders of  the

Conrpanl , .

Pursuanr to Sect ion 38 of  the Secur i t ies Regulat ion Code and Af i ic le  l l l ,  Sect ion 2 of  the Corporat ion 's  By-

Lau's. the Corporation is required to elect at least two (2) independent directors. or such indeperrdent

d i rectors const i tu t ing at  least  t$enty percent  (20%) of  the members of  such board.  rvh ichever is  less.  Messrs.
Margarito B. Teves^ Greggy' Araneta. Edgardo Angara. Victor C. Macalincag, Ro1' Joseph M. Rafbls. and
Peter  Favi la  were a l l  norn inated by shareholders of  the Compan.v.  The norninat ing shareholders are not
re lated to any of the norninees.  inc luding that  of the independent  d i rector .

A nta.lority of the above named norninees are expected to attend the scheduled Annual Meeting.

The execut ive of f icers have been appointed by ' the Board ofDirectors to serve fbr  a per iod o lone ( l )  lear  or

unt i l  the i r  successors shal l  have been e lected and qual i f ied.

Narres of Directors and Executive Offlcer!

The fbllou,ing are the natnes, ages and periods of service of the incumbent directors (as u'ell as that of the
neu,  nominees)  and execut ive of f icers of  the Cornpany'  rv i th  a br ie f  descr ipt ion of  the business erper ience
during the past f lve 1,ears ofeach ofthe directors and executive officers:

Ilphalancl (orporation 20ll SEC Fornt 20-lS
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ROBERTO V. ONGPIN,Chairmun of rhe Board, Chie/ Executive O/ficet' und Directrtr

Mr.  Onepin.  F i l ip ino,  77"  rvas e lected Director  and Chair rnan of  the Board in  November 11.2009.  He is  a lso

rhe Chair rnan of  the fo l lorv ing Phi l ipp ine- l is ted Corporat ions:  Phi lWeb Corporat ion-(WEB) (s ince 2000).

ISM Communicat ions Corporat ion ( lSM) (s ince 2000).  Atok-Brg Wedge Co.  Inc.  (AB) (s ince 2009).  and a

Director  of  San Miguel  Corporat ion (SMC),  Ginebra San Miguel .  lnc.  (GSMI) .  PAL t lo ld ings.  Inc.  (PAL)

and Perr"on Corporat ion (PCOR).  He is  a lso the chainnan of  Alphaland Bales in Is land Club.  Inc. .  The Ci ty

Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  Inc.  arrd Alphaland Mar ina Club.  lnc.  In  Hong Kong.  he is  the Non-

Execut ive Director  of  Shangr i -La Asia and the Deputv Chair r lan of  the South China Morning Post .  both

l is ted in  the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.  He is  a lso the Chainnan of  Acent ic  GnrbH (Gerrnanl ' )  and a Non-

Execut ive Director  of  Forurn E,nergy '  PLC (London).  Mr.  Ongpin jo ined SGV & Co.  in  1964 and r 'vas

Chair rnan and Managing Partner  of  the f i rm f rorn 1970 to 1979.  He served as the lv in is ter  of  Trade and

Indusrr i . 'o f  the Republ ic  of  the Phi l ipp ines f iom l979 to i986.  Mr.  Ongpin sraduated culn laude in Business

Adrnin is t rat ion f iom the Ateneo de Nlani la  Univers i tv .  rs  a Cert i f led Publ ic  Accountant .  and has an MBA

frorn the Harvard Business School .

ERIC O. RECTO. trlice-Choirrnan,
Mr.  Recto,  F i l ip ino,  51 years o ld,  was e lected Director  on November 11.  2009.  appointed Corporate

lnformat ion Of f icer  on November 18,2009,  and e lected Vice Chairman on December 8.2009.  He is  a lso the

chairman of  the Phi l ipp ine Bank of  Comrnunicat ions (PBC),  v ice chai rman and d i rector  of  Alphaland

Bales in Is land Club,  lnc. ,  The Ci ty  Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  Inc. ,  A lphaland Mar ina Club.  lnc. ,

Atok-Big Wedge Co.. Inc. Philrveb Corporation, and of Petron Coryoration. president and director of ISM

Conrntunications Corporatjon, a director of San Miguel Corporation and Manila Electric Corrpan;- (MER). a

rlember of the Board of Supervisors of Acentic GmbH and the President and Director of Top Frontier

Investrnent  Hold ings.  lnc. .  and Q-Tech Al l iance Hold ings,  Inc.  Pr ior  to  jo in ing the Company.  Mr.  Recto

servecl as Undersecretar-v- of Finance of the Republic of the Phil ippines frorn 2002 to 2005, in charge of

hancll ing both the lnternational Finance Group and the Privatization Office. Before his stint with the

government, he u'as chief f inance officer of Alaska Milk Corporation and Belle Corporation. Mr. Recto has

a degree in lndustr ia l  E,ngineer ing t iom the Univers i ty  of  the Phi l ipp ines as wel l  as an MBA f rom the

Johnson School ,  Cornel l  Univers i t l ' .

MARIO A. ORETA, President and Director
Mr.  Oreta"  F i l ip ino.  68 years o ld,  rvas e lected Director  on November 11,  2009 and President  on Decer.nber  8,

2009.  He is  a lso curent l l , the President  and a Director  of  Alphaland Development .  Inc. .  A lphaland Bales in
Is land Resort  Corporat ion,  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  lnc. ,  A lphaland Makat i  Tou,er .  Inc. .  The Ci ty 'Club at

Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  lnc. .  A lphaland Bales in Is land Club.  Inc. .  A lphaland Mar ina Corporat ion.

Alphaland Mar ina Club.  lnc. .  Aklan Boracal 'Propef t ies,  Inc.  and Alphaland Properry Managerrent

Corporation. the Vice Chairntan and Director of Alphaland Heavy E,quipment Corporation and Alphaland

Reclamat ion Corporat ion,  and Chief  Operat ing Of f lcer  of  Jet  Eagle Internat ional  L i rn i ted,  Inc.  He is  the

Chairman of  Major  Hold ings,  Inc. .  Major  Propert ies,  Inc. ,  and Major  Hornes,  Inc.  He is  a lso a Director  of

Phi lWeb Corporat ion.  ISM Communicat ions Corporat ion,  and Atok-Big Wedge Co. ,  lnc.  He rvas the
founder and rnanaging partner of Tanjuatco Oreta and Factoran Law Offices.

JESUSA LORETO A. ARELLANO-AGUDA, Chief t:inuncictl O//icer
Ms.  Aguda,  F i l ip ino,34 y 'ears o ld,  is  current l . " -  Chief  F inancia l  Of f icer  of  Alphaland Corporat ion (ALPHA),

The Ci t .v  Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace,  Inc. ,  A lphaland Bales in ls land Club,  Inc.  and Atok-Big Wedge

Co..  Inc.  (AB).  She rvas previously  Legal  Counsel  for the Of f ice of  the Vice Chairman of  Alphaland
Corporat ion ( f rom October 20 l0  to Jul ; ,2012).  She is  a Cert i f ied Publ ic  Accountant  as u 'e l l  as a rnember of

the Phil ippine Bar. She is agraduate of the University of the Phil ippines College of Larv and Harvard Law

School .

MICHAEL ANGELO PATRICK M. ASPERIN, Director
Mr.  Asper in,  F i l ip ino,  55 years o ld,  was e lected Director  on 2 Apr i l  2013.  He handles var ious Inat ters for  the

Gr-oup inc luding the development  of  the Bales in Is land Club pro ject .  as rvel l  as the operat ions of  the av iat ion

and secur i ty  d iv is ions of  the Alphaland Group.  Pr ior  to  jo in ing ALPHA, he served as Senior  Vice President

for Security for WEB from 2009 to 2012. and as Enterprise Risk and Security" Management Officer of PCOR

fronr  2007-2009.  He graduated f rorn the Phi l ipp ine Mi l i tar .v  Academy in 1981.
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(MGen) CYRANO A. AUSTRIA (Ret.), Direcrttr

Mr.  Austr ia .  F i l ip ino.6 l .  l i 'as e lectec l  Di rector  on 2 Apr i l  20 13.  He is  Senior  Vice President  for  Pro ject

Developpenr and Management of  Alphaland Developtnent .  lnc.  s ince the year  2012 up to the present .

Befbre loining the Group. Mr. Austria rvas Heacl of Pro.iect Management & Governrnent Agencies for South

Luzon Tol l r i 'ay Corporat ion (2011):  Operat ions Manager of  Mani la  Tol l  Expressr i 'a) 'S) 's terns (2009-2011):

Chief  Engineer of  the Arnied Forces of  the Phi l ipp ines (2006-2008).  Assis tant  Chief  of  Staf f  for  l .og is t ics.

G , l o f r h e P h i l i p p i n e A r m ; - ' , A F P ( 2 0 3 - 2 0 0 5 ) ; a n d s e r v e d t h e A F P i n v a r i o u s c a p a c i t i e s f i o m  1 9 9 9 - 2 0 0 6 .

CRAIG WEBSTER' D i re ctttt'
Mr.  Webster .  Br i t ish,  .1  I  1 ,ears o ld.  was e lected as Director  on Novernber 21 .2009.  Mr.  Webster  is  a lso

currentl,v a director of Alphaland Development. lnc. Mr. Webster is also Head of Legal and l-ransaction

Management of  Ashmore Investment  Management L i rn i ted s ince June 2008.  Pr ior  to  th is .  he rvas head of

Corpoiate Finance Legal Team and Deputl, Head of Legal Transaction and Managetnent and .ioined

Ashmore in  2005.  Pr ior  to . jo inrng Ashmore,  Mr"  Webster  was a senior  associate r .v i th  Wei l  Gotshal 's

Corporate Fi lance Team in London f rom 1998 to 2003.  He has a BA (hons)  in  Market ing f rom St i r l ing

Univers i t l  and qual i f ied as sol ic i tor  of  the Suprerne Cour l  o f  England and Wales in  1998 Mr-  Webster  acts

as a d i rector  orr  var ious Ashmore por t fo l io  conrpanies and is  a mentber  of  Ashlnore 's  Risk arrd Cornpl iance

Cornrnittee.

PETER DAVIES, Director
Mr.  Davies.  Br i t ish.50 years o ld, ' "vas e lected Directoron December 20,201l .  Mr.  Davies is  a Br i t ish c i t izen

and received an Honours degree f rom the Univers i ty  of  London in 1985 (History)  and subsequent l l 's tudied

to become a Charlered Surveyor receiving his professional qualif ications (Member of the Ror'al Institution

of  Chartered Surveyors)  in  1990.  Pr ior  to  lo in ing Ashmore,  he has been employed in the real  estate business

since 1988 and has rvorked for  a number of  fund managenent  businesses specia l iz ing in  real  estate inc luding

ING Real Estate and Goodman.

DENNIS O. VALDES, Director
Mr.  Valdes,  F i l ip ino,  53 years o ld,  is  present ly ' the president  of  Phi l rveb Corporat ion and a d i rector  of  ISM

Cornrnunications Corporation and Atok-Big Wedge Co., Inc. and a rnember of the Board of Stlpervisors of

Acentic GmbH. He rvorked in various capacities for the Inquirer Group of Companies frorn 1996 to 2006 as

a d i rector  of  Phi l ipp ine Dai l ; '  Inqui rer .  Inc. .  founding president  of  InqT Interact ive.  Inc.  and president  of

Inquirer Publicatiorrs. lnc. Sintultaneously. he u'orked for the Print Tolvn Group of conlpanies as exectlt ive

v ice president  a1d chainnan of  the execut ive commit tee of  FEP Pr int ing Corp. .  pres ident  of  Lexmedia

Digital Corp. and founding president of Newspaper Paraphernalia. Inc. He is a certif led public accountant.

graduated Inagna cum laude in Business Administration and Accountancy from the University of the

Phil ippines and has an MBA degree frorn the Kellogg School of Managernent, Norlhr'r 'estern Universit l ' .

RODOLFO MA. A. PONFERRAD A, Directctr and Corporate Secretary;

Mr.  Ponferrada,  F i l ip ino,  37 years o ld,  u"as e lected as d i rector  of  the Company in Apr i l  20,  2012.  He is

cr-rrrentl l,the Corporate Secretary and Corporate Information Officer of the Company. He is also the

Corporate Secretary and a Corporate Information Offrcer of ISM Comrnunications Corporation. Atok- Big

Wedge Co. .  Inc. ,  Phi l r .veb Corporat ion and the Phi l ipp ine Bank of  Comrnunicat ions.  and a Menrber

(representing the private sector) of the Board of Directors of the Social Housirrg Finance Corporation. Mr.

Ponferrada is a Mernber of the Phil iptt ine Bar.

JOANNA O. DUARTE, Director and Head of Sales and Nlarketing
Ms.  Duarte,  F i l ip ino,  45.  is  u,as e lected as d i rector  of  the Company in Apr i l  20.2012.  She is  a lso current ly

the Director  for  Sales and Market ing fbr  Alphaland Bales in Is land Club,  Inc. .  The Ci ty  Club at  Alphaland

Makat i  P lace,  Inc.  and Alphaland Mar ina Club,  Inc.  She is  an entrepreneur r 'v i th  ventures in  the reta i l

i n d u s t r y . s h e i s t h e p r e s i d e n t o f B i g & S r n a l l M a r k e t i n g C o . , I n c ' . a c o m p a n i , s h e s t a r t e d i n l 9 3 9 ' ' r , i t h t h e
popular  local  c loth ing brands Big & Smal l  Co. ,  H.A.B.  Matern i ty .  and More and Spin;  and a Director  o l

Bearwear lnc. ,  ou,ner  of  local  c loth ing brand Orange Juice.  She has a degree in ln terd isc ip l inary Studies

frorn the Ateneo de Manila University and has attended an MA in Entrepreneurship trom the Asian Institute

of  Management.

MARGARITO B. TEVES, Independent Director

Mr.  Teves,  F i l ip ino,  70 vears o ld,  rvas e lected Independent  Director  on May 26,2011 and assumed th is

posi t ion on July  1,2011.  Mr.  Teves is  current ly  the Chairman of  Think Tank,  Inc. ,  Mentber  of  the Board of

Advisers of Metro Bank and Trust Company and Member of the Board of Directors of Landbank
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Countrl,side Developrnent Foundation. He was forrnerly' Secretary of the Departnlent of Finance, Landbank
president  and CEO and a Metnber of  the House of  Representat ives ( represent ing the 3rd Dist r ic t  o f  Negros

Or ienta l ) .  He obta ined a Higher Nat ional  Dip loma (HND) in  Business Studies,  equivalent  to  a BSC in

Business Economics f rom the Ci t l '  o f  London Col lege and a Master  of  Af is  (MA) in  Development

Econonics f rom the Center  for  Development  Econotn ics,  Wi l l iams Col lege.  Massachuset ts .  LJSA. FIe r 'vas

recent ly ,  conferred an Flonorary Degree,  Doctor  of  Lau's .  b1 '  Wi l l iams Col lege,  and named Senior  Adviser  to

the China-  Asean Econornic  and Cul ture Research Center  and Vis i t ing Prof-essor  at  the Gui l in  Univers i ty  of

Electronic  Technologf  in  China.

Neu,  Norninees for  Di rector

ROY JOSEPH M. RAFOLS - lndePendent
Mr.  Rafo ls .59.  is  a lso Director  of  Atok-Big Wedge Co. ,  Inc.  He l ias been in pr ivate pract ice s ince October

2011.  pr ior  to  rhat .  he was the Chief  Operat ing Of f icer  of  the Phi l ipp ine Stock Exchange 1"PSE' ' )  and

concurrent Head of its lssuer Regulation Division tiorn October 2001 to 2009. Mr. Rafbls graduated frorn

the De La Sal le  Univers i ty  rv i th  a c legree in BSC major  in  Manageuent  of  F inancia l  lnst i tu t ions.  He

l ikeu, ise holds a Bachelor  of  Larvs Degree f rorn the Ateneo de Mani la  Univers i ty-Larv School  and a Masters

degree in lntentational and Cornparative Larv from Georgetou'n University Lau' Center, Mr. Rafbls is a

member of  the Phi l ipp ine Bar"

VICTOR C. MACALINCAG - lndependent
Mr.  Macal incas is  an Independent  Director  of  Phih ieb Corporat ion.  Crown Equi t ies,  Inc. .  Semirara Min ing

Corporat ion,  Ripubl ic  Glass l - lo ld ings Corp. .  and SEM-Calaca Power Corporat ion.  He uas e lected Board

Chair rnan of  One Weal thy Nat ion (OWN) Fund.  a balanced fund.  ln  the la t ter  par t  of  2013.  he rvas e lected

Board Director of Asian All iance Investment Corporation. He r.vas the President of Trade & Investrnent

Developrrent  Corporat ion of  the Phi l ipp ines which is  present ly  knou'n as Pt{ lLEXlM ( fbrmer l l '

Phi lGuarantee)  f rorn l99l  unt i l  h is  res ignat ion in  2001.  He was the Deputy Min is ter  of  F inance f rorn l98l

to 1986 and Undersecretary of  F inance f rorr  1986 to 199 l .  He a lso held in  a concurrent  capaci ty ,  the

posi t ion of  Nat ional  Treasurer  f rom 1981 to 1988.  He was a lso the Chairn. ran of  Pi l ip inas Bank f iorn 1984 to

1988 and the Execut ive Vice President  of  the Land Bank of  the Phi l ipp ines f rom 1980 to 1981.  He rvas a lso

aBoardD i rec to ro f  PLDTf rom lgS8 to  l gg5and theNa t i ona l  PowerCorpo ra t i on (NAPOCOR) f ro rn  1978

to 1986. He also served as tnernber of the Advisory Board of First Metro Investment Corporation fiom 2004

to 2009.  Mr.  Macal incag is  a Cer- t i f led Publ ic  Accountant .  He has a Bachelor  of  Ar ts  in  Business

Adminis t rat ion l rom the Univers i t l ,  o f  the East .  He completed the acadernic  requi rements tbr  a Mastera l

Degree in Economics from the same university. He finished a fellorvship prograln conducted b.v the

Econorr ] ic  Development  Inst i tu te of  the Wor ld Bank,  Washington D.C.  U.S.A.  in  197L

GREGORIO M. ARANETA III - Independent
Mr.  Araneta I I I  is  an Independent  Director  of  Phi l lveb Corporat ion.  H e is  the Chainnan and Chief

Executive Officer of Araneta Properties. Inc. since 20L0. He is President and Chainnan of ARAZA

Resources Corporation and Cannel Development Corporation, Chairman of Gregorio Araneta lnc.. Gregorio

Araneta Management Cotporation. and Garnma Properties, Inc. Mr. Araneta studied at the University'of San

Francisco and Ateneo de Manila University rvhere he earned his Bachelor of Arts Degree in Econonitcs

EDGARDO ANGARA - lndependent
Mr. Angara is an Independent Director of Philu,eb Corporation. A fonner Senator of the Reptrblic of the

Phi l ipp ines.  he holds the d is t inct ion of  being the longest  serv ing senator  in  the post-EDSA Senate.  Except

for a rnandatory term break, he has been elected to fbur consecutive terms ofsix 1,ears each (1987-1998:

2001-2073).  Whi le in  Senate,  Mr.  Angara authored or  sponsored manl ' larvs inc luding the Free High School

Educat ion Act ,  the Gener ics Act ,  the law rvhich created Phi lheal th,  the or ig inal  Senior  Ci t izens Act ,  the

Rene',vable Energy Act, among several others. Mr. Angara graduated frorn the University of the Phil ippines

in I 958 rvhere he finished at the top of his larv class. He passed the bar a year later and afterrvards joined the

larv f i rm of  Ponce-Enr i le  Siguion-Reyna Monteci l lo  & Belo La ' " r ,Of f ices.  He then pursued fur ther  s tudies in

lau', having been granted a Colurnbia Larv School scholarship but ult irnately accepting the DeWitt

Fellorvship at the University of Michigan, where he obtained his Master of Lar.vs degree rnajoring in labor

and corporate lar.vs. Mr. Angara is a founding member of the ACCRA Larv Offices, one of the Phil ippines'

top lar , " ' t - i rms.  He a lso served as president  of  the Phi l ipp ine Bar Associat ion in  197-5 and president  of  the

Integrated Bar of  the Phi l ipp ines in  1979.  Whi le in  corporate pract ice,  Mr.  Angara has served on the boards

of  manv leading cornpanies inc luding San Miguel .  RCBC, Insular  L i fe  and IBM.
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lndependent  Director

As approi, 'ed by.,the Board of Directors. the procedure tbr the notnination of independent directors shall be as

fb l l ou  s :

The nont inat ion of  independent  d i rectors shal l  be conducted b1 ' the Norninat ions Cornnl i t tee pr ior  to  the

Apnual  Meet i lg .  Al l  recomrrendat ions shal l  be s igned b1 ' the nonl inat ing stockholders together  rv i th  the

acceptance andlonforrn i t l 'by ' the nominees for  e lect ion.  The Nominat ions Cornrn i t tee shal l  pre-screen the

qual i f icat ions and prepare a f ina l  l is t  o f  a l l  candidates and put  in  p lace screening pol ic ies and parameters to

enable i t  to  ef f 'ect ive l l , rev ieu ' the qual i f icat ions of  the nominees for  independent  d i rectors.

Af ier  the norninat ior i .  the Nopinat ions Comrni t tee shal l  prepare a Final  Lrst  of  Candidates rvhich shal l

conrain a l l  the in fbrntat iorr  about  a l l  the nominees for  independent  d i rectors.  as reqLr i red by 'ex is t ing and

appl icable ru les.  ivh ich l is t ,  shal l  be rnade avai lable to the Commission and to a l l  s tockholders through the

t i l ing ana c l is t r ibut ion of  the in forrnat ion statement ,  or  in  such other  repor ts  the Cornpan,v is  requi red to

sr- rbrn i t  the Contmiss ion.  The name of  the person or  group of  persons r .vho recomtnended the norninat ion of

the independent  d i rector  shal l  be ident i f ied in  such repor t  inc luding any re lat ion r ' r ' i th  the t lo tn inee.

Only norn inees rvhose names appear on the f ina l  l is t  o f  candidates shal l  be e l ig ib le for  e lect ion as

independent directors. No other nomination shall be enterlained after the final l ist of candidates shall have

been preparecl. No furrher nominations shall be entertained or allowed on the floor during the actual annual

stockholders '  meet ing.

All norninees do not have a relationship r.vith the Conpanl, which rvould interfere with the erercise of

indepepdent judgrnent in carr,ving out responsibil i t ies of a director. None of them are related to anl of the

directols or officers of the Cornpan.v.

The Nominations Comrnittee has taken into consideration the qualif ications to be an independent director.

Attached as Annexes 56A" 668' and "C are the Certif icatiops of the Qualif ication of the Noniinees for

Independent Directors narnely Messrs. Teves, Araneta, and Macalincag.

1i approving the nornination for Independent Director. the Nomination Comrnittee took into consideration

rhe guidel ines on rhe nominat ion of  Independent  Directors prescr ibed in SEC Memorandum CircularNo l6 '

Series of 2002. All the norninees for election to the Board of Directors have at least one (l) share registered

in thei r  names.

IVIA. LOURDES A. TORRES, Corporate Information Ollicer
Nis. Torres. Fil ipino. 60. was appointed Corporate Inforrnation Officer on 27 Noverrber 2013. Ms. Torres is

presently connected with WEB, as Executive Secretary to the Chairman. Prior to joining WEB. she '"vorked

in various capacities with several cornpanies in the private sector and serveci as Assistant to the Secretary of

Trade and Industry  f rom 1983 to 1993.  She has a Bachelor  of  Science in Business Adrnin is t rat ion degree

from St .  Theresa's  Col lege.  Mani la .

JONAMEL G. ISRAEL-ORBE, Corporote Inforntation OlJicer

Ms. lsrael-Orbe. Ftl ipino, 40 years old, replaced Mr. Recto as Corporate Infortnation Officer on 13

December 20 13.  Ms.  Orbe is  a lso Legal  Counsel  for  Alphaland Developrnent ,  Inc.  and Corporate

Infbnnat ion Of f icer  of  Atok-Big Wedge Co. .  lnc.  She is  a member of  the Phi l ipp ine Bar.

CLIBURN ANTHOI{Y A. ORBE, Assistant Corporate Secretary ancl Corprtrate Infctrmotion O/f cer

Mr. Orbe r.vas elected Assistant Corporate Secretary on 2 Januarv 2014. He is also Director, Assistant

Corporate Secretar,v and Corporate Infbrntation Officer of WEB. He has a Bachelor of Lau's degree ft 'ottt

Mindanao State University r.vhere he graduated cum laude and class valedictorian. He was fonnerly an

associate of Rodrigo Berenguer & Guno law firm. He is a member of the Integrated Bar of the Phil ippines.

Directorships in Other Reporling Companies
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N1r.  Roberto V.  Ongpin a lso serves as chainran of  ISM Corntnunicat ions Corporat ion.  Phi lu 'eb Corporat ion.

Arok-Big Wedge Co.  lnc. .  The Ci t1,  Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  lnc.  and Alphaland Bales in Is land

Club.  Inc.  and a d i rector  of  Petron Corporat ion.  San lv l iguel  Corporat ion.  PAL Hold ings.  Inc.  and Ginebra

San  M igue l ,  l nc .

Nlr .  Er- ic  O.  Recto is  a lso the chai r rnan of  Phi l ipp ine Bank of  Communicat ions.  the president  of  ISM

Comrnunicat ions Corporat ion as u 'e l l  as v ice chai rman of  Phi lweb Corporat ion,  Atok-Big Wedge Co.  lnc. ,

petron Corporat ion.  The Ci ty ,Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  Inc.  and Alphaland [ ]a les in ls land Club.  Inc.

He is  a lso a d i rector  of  Mani la  Electr ic  Conlpany 'and San Miguel  Cotpot 'a t ion.

Mr.  Mar io A.  Oreta is  pres ident  of  The Ci ty  Club at  Alp l ia land Makatr  Place.  lnc.  and Alphaland Bales in

Is land Club.  lnc. .  a  d i rector  of  Phi l$ ,eb Corporat ion"  ISM Comnrurr icat ions Corporat ion and Atok-Big

Wedge Co.  lnc.

Ms.  Jesusa Loreto A.  Are l lano-Aeuda is  the chief  f inance of t lcer  of  Atok-Big Wedge Co. ,  [nc.

Mr.  Rodol tb Ma.  A.  Ponferrada is  a d i rector  of  Atok-  Big Wedge Co -  Inc '

Mr. Derrnis O. Valdes is a director and president of Philrveb Corporation and a director of ISM

Comrnunicat ions Corporat ion and Atok-Big Wedge Co. ,  lnc.

Mr.  Cl iburn Anthony A.  Orbe is  a d i rector  of  WEB.

Shares of  ISM Communicat ions Corporat ion ( lSM),  Phi l rveb Corporat ion (WEB),  Atok-Big Wedge Co. ,  lnc.

(AB).  phi l ipp ine Bank of  Cornmurr icat ions (PBC and PBCP),  Petron Corporat ion (PCOR and PPREF),

Man i l a  E le i t r i c  Co rnpany ' (MER) ,  San  M igue l  Co rpo ra t i on  (SMC and  SMCPI ) .  PAL  Ho ld ings .  I nc .  (PAL)

and Ginebra San Miguei .  Inc.  (GSMI)  are a l l  l is ted in  the Phi l ipp ine Stock Exchange.  Inc.  Shares of  The

Cir) '  Club at  Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  lnc.  and Alphaland Bales in Is land Club.  lnc.  are covered bv

Registration Statements frled rvith the SEC.

Signi f icant  Emplo,vee

The Cornparr ,v  considers i ts  ent i re lnanpo\ \er  cornplenrent  ( inc luding that  of  i ts  subsid iar ies)  as s igni f icant

entp loyees.  expected to contr ibute posi t ive l .v  to  the Contpany 's  goals and object ives in  I ine wi th the

Cornpanl , 's  r r iss ion.  v is ion and object ives through the in-rp lernentat ion of  i ts  core and foundat ional  va lues.

Fanri l) '  Relationsli ips

Messrs. Eric O. Recto and Dennis O. Valdes are nepher.l 's of Mr. Roberto V. Ongpin. Ms. .f oanna O. Duatle

is  a n iece of  Mr.  Ongpin.  Other  than the foregoing,  the persons norninated or  chosen by the Cornpany' to

becorre directors or executive officers are not related to each other up to the fourth civil degree either by

cor.rsanguinitl '  or affi nit l.
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7 lnvolvement  in  Cef ta in Leqal  Proceedings

l. Det,eloptnent Bctnk r;/ the Phitipplnes i '-s. Ret,nctldo Cl, David, et ul., OivlB Ca.re,\.r. C'-C-ll-0192-H'

1f t ice ct f  the gtnbudsnton.  This is  a cr i rn inal  compla int  for  v io lat ions of  R.A.  No.  3019.  and banking

lau,s.  ru les a ld regulat ions.  pending rv i t l i  the Of f ice of  the Ombudsnlan.  in  connect ion wi th cer ta in loan

ancl share purchase transactions Mr. Roberro V. Ongpin (RVO) had u'ith tl ie Developrnent Bank of the

phi l ipp ines (DBP) involv ing shares in  Phi lex Min ing Corporat ion (Phi ler) .  In  an Order  dated 26

Noverrber 2012 and approved on 8 Januar1,,2013. the Office of the Ombudsman denied all motions for

recols iderat ion of  i ts  24 September 2012 Revierv Resolut ion and accordingl l '  f i led the corresponding

Infbrrnations lvith the Sandiganbal'an.

2. Atry^. Zenaicla Ongkiko-Acortla, as attornel,-in-fsct oJ'Att1; Xlario E. Ongkiko and in hehul/'of Philex

il l ining Corporutir.n vs. Robet.to L/. C)ngpin, et al., SEC Cose No. 11-166, Branc:h 158, Regional Trial

Courr  cyf  Paslg.  This involves a "der ivat ive sui t "  f i led on behal f  o f  Phi lex against  RVO and other

.o, .1- 'pu, . r i . ,  benef ic ia l ty  owned b;-  RVO in connect ion rv i th  Sect ion 23.2 of  the Secur i t ies Regulat ion

Code and in order to recover the "short-s',ving profits" rvhich rvere allegedl; realized fiorn supposed

transactions involving Philex shares. This case is in the discoverl ' stage. A related Petit ion for Revierv

on Cerriorari is also pending before the Supreme Court in G.R. No. 204166, entit led Roherttt tr/. Ongpin,

el ol. t,s. Acordq. et al.

3. people vs. Rel,naldo G. Davict, er at., S.B.-13-CRltl-7 105 and S.B.-13-CRIII-0 106, Sandiganbayan

(Thircl Dit, ision).This case was fi led against RVO and others in connectioll with flvo loans obtained b1'

Deltaventure Resources. inc. (DVRI) froru DBP. The Informations in both cases. respectively' for

v io lat ions of  Sect ion 3 (e)  of  R.A.  No.  3019 rvere f i led on l0  January 2013.  There is  a pcnding Mot ion

to Quash f i led b1, the accused.

,+. ln Re; Ex Porte Petirion fbr the Issuance of Freeze Order Agrtinst the Bonk Ac'crtunts d Roberto I/.

Ongpin, et at., CA-G.R. AMLC No,00066, Court of Appettts (Fifth Dit,ision) This is a petition filed by

the Anti-Money Laundering Council fbr the freezing of the bank accounts of RVO and others in

connection rvith tr.vo loans granted by DBP to DVRI in 2009. The freeze order has been lifted as of June

2 0 1 3 .

5. Alphatancl Holclings Singapore) Pte. Lt.l. v. Roberto V. Ongpin, Mtrrio A. Oretu, Dennis O. l'oldes,

itlargarit1 P. Tet'es, Rottolfo Ma. A. Ponferraclu, et. al. (Civil Case No. M-7565. Makati City RTC

Bralch 66) - This is a complaint for Interirn Measure of Protection in Aid of Arbitration' The

petit ioner's application fbr a ternporary restraining order or a temporary order of protection rvas denjed

for  lack of  rner i r  by the RTC in an Order  dated 22 January 2014.  On l4 Februar l '2014.  the RTC issued

an Order denl,ing the petit ioner's Motion for the issuance of an Order Enfbrcing Arvard No. l9 issued

b1,  the Ernergency 'Arb i t rator .  On l9 February 2014,  the RTC l ikeu ' ise issued an Order  declar ing

Petit ioner's Motion to Refer to Arbitration to have been rendered moot. The petit ioner brought the case

to the Coufi of Appeals on Certiorari. On Jr.rne 5.2014, a definit ive agreement r.vas signed between

Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte Ltd. and affi l iates and the group of Mr. Roberto V. Ongpin and

Alp l ia land Corporat  ion.

6. NBI Technicctl Intelligence Division - Intelligence Service - Eduveges O. Batalants. Roberto 1". Ongpin,

er  a/ . .  NPS Docket  No.  XVI- INV- l4E-00168 (For :  Ser ious I l legal  Detent ion.  Grave Coerc ion and

Robbery) - This is a complaint for alleged serious i l legal detention. grave coerciolt and robberv fl led

against  RVO, Michael  Angelo Patr ick M. Asper in,  Josephine A.  Manalo.  Cl iburn Anthon,v A.  Orbe,  et

al. The case is presently pending before the Department of Justice.

Other than the foregoing, no director or senior corporate officer ofthe lssuer during the past f ive (5) years

has been subject to:

(a) Any bankruptcy petit ion fi led by or against any business of which such person was a

general parlner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or uithin trvo vears prior to

that t irne:

(b)  Any convict ion by f ina l  judgmenl ,  inc luding the nature of  the of fense,  i l1  a cr iminal

proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other rninor offenses;
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(c) An-v order. judgnrent. or decree. not subsequentll '  reversed. suspended or vacated. of anv

couf t  of  cornpetent  jur isd ic t ion.  dornest ic  or  fore ign,  perrnanent l ,v  or  te lnporar i lY enio in ing.  bar- r tng.

suspending or  othel r ise l i rn i t ing h is  involvement  in  an) ' type of  business.  secur i t ies.  cornmodi t ies

o r  bank ing  ac t i \  i t i es :  o r

(d)  Being tbLrnd b1 'a domest ic  or  fore ign cour t  of  cornpetent- iur isd ic t ion ( in  a c iv i l  act ion) .  the

Secur i t ies and Exchange Cornrn iss ion or  comparable fbre ign bodl ' .  or  a dornest ic  or  fore ign

exchalge or other organized trading rnarket or self-regulatorv oroan zation. to have violated a

secur i t ies or  copimodi t ies la . "v  or  regulat ion and the judgrnent  has not  been re" 'ersed.  suspended.  or

vacated.

Cer la in  Re la t i onsh ips  and  Re la ted  T ransac t i ons

'l 'he 
Corlpany is not arvare of an,v trarrsaction in the last tu'o (2) 1,ears. or proposed transaction to rvhich the

registrant is a party,, in rvhich the follou'ing persons have direct or indirect material interest. that were out of

t he  o rd ina r l  cou rse  o fbus iness :

1. any director or executive officer
2. an,v nominee for election as director
3. any' security holder named above
4.  any member of  the immediate fami lv  of  the above-named persons

E,xcept as clisclosed in the Company's notes to financial statements contained in the Company's audited

financial staternents, there has been no material transaction to u'hich the Companl' \\ 'as or is to be a party in

rvhich anl,of the incumbent directors or norninee director or executive officer of the Cornpanv or orVtters of

rxore than ten percent of the Company's voting shares has or is to have a direct or indirect material interest.

In the ordinary course of business, the Cornpany has transactions rvith other companies in rvhich some of

such persons rnay have an interest. Such transactions are negotiated on arl arm's length basis corrparable or

bet ter  than that  which can be provided bv independent  th i rd par t ies.

TIie transactions with related partiesiaffi l iates are carried out under commercial tertns and conditions. Pricing

for the sales of products are market driven. For purchases and other services. the Cornpany's plltctice is to

sol ic i t  compet i t ive quotes f rom th i rd par t ies.  Transact ions f rom an1' re lated paf t ) 'are evaluated on ar l r 's

length conrrnercial ternts and subject to bidding against third parly suppliers. Purchases and services are

usuall l ar.r,arded on the basis of lo'uvest cost provider. The Compan.v- also receives/grants cash advances and

other financial support f iornr'to affi l iated cornpanies and stockholders. These cash advances to and frorn

affi l iates bear interest rate based on current bank rates and with no definite repa)'ment period.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The aggregate compensation (including bonuses) paid or accrued during the last tu'o ;-ears and the ensuing

!ear to the Cornpany,'s Chief E,xecutive Officers (CEO) arrd the key officers named belorv. as a group are:

Narne and Pr inc ipal  Posi t ion

CEO and Top 4 Highest  Paid Execut ives
Roberto V. Ongpin, Chairrnan
Mar io A.  Oreta.  President
Fernando R.  Sant ico.  Jr . ,  Chief  Operat ing Of f icer

(cFo)
Marr iana t { .  Yulo.  CFO

Bonus Aggregate
(PhP)  Con r

Salary

Rodolfo Ma. A. Ponfenada. Corporate Secreta

All Directors and Of1lcers as a Group Unnamed

CEO and Top 4 Highest  Paid Execut ives
Roberto V. Ongpin. Chairrnan
Mar io A.  Oreta,  President
Mar iana H.  Yulo,  CFO

2 0 r 3
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Rodol fo
M ichae l

President

Ma. A. Ponferrada. Corporate Secretar-v
Anue lo  P r t r i ck  M .  Aspe r i n .  Sen io r  V rce

Al l  Di rectors and Of l lcers as a Group Unnarred

P17.03 1 .6+- r
P 5 7  t i 7  J 5 g

CEO and Top ,1 Highest  Paid Erecut ives
Roberto V.  Ongpin"  Chair rnan.  CEO and Director
Mar io A.  Oreta,  Presider t t  and Director
Ongpin.  Anna Bet t ina.  Erecut ive Vice President  and

D i rector
Michael  Angelo Patr ick N' l .  Asper in.  Erecut ive Vice

Preside r r t  and Director

t 0  t l

* P 7 J  R ) g  c ) ) J

Jesusa Loreto A.  Are l lano-Aguda.  CFO

Al l  Di rectors and Off icers as a Group Unnanred
*P89"  167 .62 ,1

+ Esttntalerl oggreg(ttL' crttttpettsalictt't fitr v'hr.tle l"eut' o[ 20 ]1

The above execut ive  o f f l cers"  as ide  f rom the i r  compensat ion  and bonus.  a re  en t i t led  to  re i r .nburse  cer ta in

expenses  rvh ich  they , incur  as  par t  o f the  ord inary  course  o fbus iness  ( i .e .  gaso l ine .  representa t ion  and t rave l

expenses) .  There  are  no  spec ia l  te rms or  compensatorv  p lans  or  a r rangements  rv i th  respec t  to  the  res i -snat ion ,

te r lm ina t ion  o f  emplo lment  o f  such execut ive  o f f i cers  be t rveen the  Compan; -  and any  o f  i t s  e rec t r t i ve

o f f i cers .  L ikewise .  there  are  no  war ran ts  o r  op t ions  he ld  by  the  Compan l "s  o f f i cers  o r  d i rec to rs  e i ther  s ing ly

or  co l lec t i ve ly .

The no l -execut ive  n tembers  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  do  no t  rece ive  any  d i rec t  compensat io r r  f rom the

Company.  None o f  the  d i rec to rs ,  in  the i r  persona l  capac i ty ,  has  been cont rac ted  and compensated  by  the

Company fo r  serv ices  o ther  than those prov ided as  a  d i rec to r .  The Board  o f  D i rec to rs"  upon a t tendance a t

each Board  Meet ing .  i s  au thor ized  under  the  Company"s  Ar t i c les  o f  Incorpora t ion  to  rece ive  a  per  d iem o f  P

r 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 .

The Company is being managed by the nranagement team of ADI.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountant

In 2013.  the Company engaged SGV & Co.  as i ts  external  audi tor .  There r .vere no changes in or

d isagreements wi th accountants on any mat ter  of  account ing pr inc ip les or  pract ices.  f inancia l  s tatement

disc losure.  or  audi t ing scope or  procedure dur ing the past  f iscal  year .

The Compan,v paid i ts  external  audi tor  the fo l lo iv ing f 'ees for  the last  three (3)  years for  professional  serv ices

rendered:

Trpe of  Sen- ice
-{gsresate Fee -{rnounts (in PbP)

: 0 1 3 : 0 1 : : 0 1 I Sature of  Sen{ces

E,.:temal -{r:dit 1 .66 i . 00 r l 1-+,1t-t.0r-lrl 1. lr- l f  .c0r l-{r-rdit c' I Finurcial Statrmrnts

Reta]Jler _i0rl lLlu I trLl.0rl r:l 1+r:1.ri[rUTan adrisot-'- setr-ices

Iota l  fees 1 . 9 6 5 . 0 0 0 t .6 -10 .0  00 1.340.000

The Audi t  Commit tee is  d i rect ly  responsib le in  select ing and appoint ing the independent  publ ic  accountants.

Annual ly .  the Commit tee recommends that  the Board lequest  shareholder  rat i f icat ion of  the appointment  of

the independent  publ ic  accountants.  The Commit tee is  a lso responsib le for  sening the compensat ion of  the

independent  publ ic  accountants and per iodical ly  rev iervs the fees charged fbr  a l l  pcrmi t ted audi t - re lated

expenses and other  serv ices.  The Comrr i t tee per forms overs ight  funct ions over  the Company's  external

audi tors.  I t  ensures that  the audi tors act  independent ly  f rom lxanagement and that  i t  is  g iven access to a l l

records.  propert ies and personnel  of  the Companv to enable i t  to  per form i ts  funct ions propery.  I t  is  a lso thei r

responsib i l i ty  to  evaluate and.  when appropr iate.  to  remove the independent  publ ic  accountants-  The Audi t

Commit tee makes recommendat ions to the Board of  Di rectors concerning the external  ar . rd i tors and pre-

approves audi t  p lans,  scope and f requency before the conduct  of  the external  audi t .  T l ie  Commit tee rev ieu 's

the f inancia l  fepor ts  before these are submit ted to the Board.  r 'v i th  par t icu lar  focus on ( i )  ani 'changes in

account ing pol ic ies and pract ices,  ( i i )  Major  judgmental  areas.  ( i i i )  s igni f icant  adjustments resul t ing f rom

audi t .  ( iv)  going concern assumpt ions.  (v)  compl iance iv i th  account ing standards.  and (v i )  compl iance iv i th
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tax. legal and regulatory/ requirements. 
-fhe 

Audit Cornmittee has approved the audit conducted by SGV &

Co .

There rvere no other prof'essional services rendered by SGV & Co durlng the period.

The reappointrnent of SGV & Co. as the Company"s external auditor rvas approved b)' the Stocklrolders in

the Annual  Stockholders Meet ing held last  2 Apr i l  2013.

There uere no disagreements with respect to the transf'e| of the accotll l t. nor was there any

account ing/audi t ing issue ra ised in th is  connect ion.

The reappoint rnent  of  rhe said audi t ing f i rm as Independent  Publ ic  Accountant  for  the 1"ear  2013 rv i l l  be

subni i t red to the stockholders by ' the Companl"s Audi t  Comn.r i t tee for  thei r  conf i r tnat ion and approval

dur ins.  the regular  annual  s tockholders rneet ing.

pursuant  to Rule 6g of  the Secur i t ies Regulat ion Code on the 5 -vear  rotat ion requi retnent  for  the external

auditor. the Audit Contrnittee shall require the appointrnent of a ne\\ ' partner to handle and oversee the

external audit of the Cornpany,'s f inancial statements. The appointnlent of the duly qualif ied and SEC

registered Independent Public Accountant shall be announced in the shareholders rneeting for consideration

and approval  of the stockholders.

Duly,author ized representat ives of  SGV & Co are expected to be present  at the meet ing u 'here thev rv i l l  have

the opportuniq' to respond to appropriate questions'

Item 8. Compensation Plans

On 5 June 2013.  the Board of  Di rectors of  the Cornpany approved a Stock Opt ion Plan.  u ' i th  the fo l lorv ing

salient features:

a.  Al locates no r lo l 'e  than 5% of  the author ized capi ta l  ( i .e . .  100 mi l l ion comrnon shares)  for  the p lan '

b. A stock option committee rvil l  make the grants'

c. Each grant is fbr 3 r,ears and rvil l  vest lr ' i  each for each ofthe succeeding years.

d.  Str ike pr ice shal l  not  be less than 80% of  the market  va lue at  the t ime of  the grant .

This p lan is  being subrni t ted for  the approval  of  the shareholders.

C. ISSUANCE OF SECT.JRITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

On January 2,2014. the Board of Directors of the Company approved the follor'ving:
(a)  issuance of  557,567.000 common shares of  the Company to regis tered landor ' r 'ners.  ivh ich inc ludes

Mr.  Roberto V.  Ongpin,  in  exchange for  parcels  of  land in connect ion rv i th  the Alphaland Baguio

Mountain Log Homes Project  at  an issue pr ice of  P2.50 per  share:  and

1b) capi ta l  ca l l ,  in i t ia l l l , f rom i ts  major  shareholders v ia a pr ivate p lacement  and eventual ly  a lso f i 'orn

its minorit l, shareholders at an issue price of P2.50 per share.

On January '  20,2014,  the Company issued 557,567.000 common shares to the regis tered lando"vners of

parcels of land and 600.000,000 common shares to RVO Capital Ventures Cotporation.

On Februar-v-  1.2014,  the Company completed i ts  minor i ty  of fer ing of  108,336,866 common shares r 'vh ich

vie lded gross proceeds of  P270.8 mi l l ion.

On February 19.2014.  the Company issued a tota l  o f  109.000.000 new col r t tnon shares to th lee separate

foreign investors. as fbllorvs:
.  Ci tadel  lnvestments L imi ted (subscr ibed for  10 mi l l ion shares for  P25 mi l l ion) ;
.  Mr.  Derek Arcul l i  (subscr ibed for  l0  mi l l ion shares for  P25 n i l l ion) ;  and
.  F ine Land L i rn i ted (subscrrbed for  89 rn i l l ion shares for  US$5 mi l l ion) .
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l 'he fbregoing are being subrnitted for the ratif ication of the shareholders

Itern 8 (Cornpensation Plans) above sets fbrlh the adoption of the Cornpanl"'s stock option plan.

There are no provis ions in  the Cornpanv's  Ar t ic le  of  lncorporat ion or  By ' -La\vs that  uoLr ld dela," ' .  defer  or

prevent  a change in contro l  o f  the Companl ' .

Each cornmon share ent i t les the holder  to one vote.  At  each meet ing of  the stockholders.  each stockholder

entit led to vote on a particular question or matter involved shall be entit led to vote tbr each share of stock

sranding in  l i is  narne in the books of  the Company as of  record date.  Vot ing shal l  be in  accordance u ' i th  the

vot ing procedut 'e  descr ibed belo"v.

Each holder  of  compon stock shal l  be ent i t led to such d iv idends as rnav be declared b1 the Board and on the

basis of  outstanding stock held b,v thern.  The Board is  author ized to declare d iv idends u 'h ich shal l  be

declar .ed a1d paid out  o1 ' the Company, 's  unrest l - ic ted reta ined earnings.  A cash d iv idend declarat ion does not

requi re an1, , fur1her approval  f ror l  the stockholders.  A stock d iv idend approval  shal l  requi re the fur ther

approyal  of  the stockholders represent ing at  least  tuo- t l t i rds o l the Colnpanl" 's  outstanding capi ta l  s tock.

Ulder the Cornpany's amended articles of incorporation. holders of comrnon stock have waived their pre-

er'ptive rignt. iHeie is no provision in the Corrpanl, 's amended articles of incorporation or b1'-larvs tl iat

lvould delay, defer or prevent a change in control of the Corporation.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securit ies

There are no ptaters or  act ions to be taken up fbr  the rnodi f icat ion of  an1'c lass of  the Companr ' 's  secur i t ies

or  the issuance or  author izat ion tbr  issuance of  one c lass of  the Company's  secur i t ies in  exchange for

outstandinq secur i t ies of  another  c lass.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

The ar- rd i ted f inancia l  sratements as o lDecenrber  31.2013.  Managernent 's  Discussion and Analys is .  Market

Price of Shares and Dividends and other data related to the Cornpanl's t inancial inftrrmation are attached

hereto.

Financial Statements

The aLrdi ted consol idated f inancia l  s taternents of  the Compan,u-  for  the y 'ear  ended Decernber 31,  2013 is

herebv attached fbr reference. Copies of the interim unaudited consolidated flnancial statements for the

per iod ended March 31.201,1 shai l  be made avai lable to the stockholders dur ing the Annual  Stockholders '

Mee t i ng  on  Augus t  28 .  2014 .

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operation and Financial Condition

Organization and Business

On November,  19,  1990,  the Company rvas incorporated as Agro Plast ics.  Inc under Secur i t ies and Exchange

Corrr r r r iss ion No.  18385 wi th Pioneer Ventures,  Inc.  as the contro l l ing shareholder .  Unt i l  1994.  the

Compan,v's sole business rvas to supply the requirements of the Lapanda,v Group's banana plantations,

Sornet i rne in  March 1995,  the Cornpan;-  u 'as sold to Macondray & Co. ,  Inc.  ( "MCI")  and was subsequent lv
renarned Macondray Plastics. Inc. (MPl). ln 1991 , the Cornpany embarked on a program to reduce its total

dependence on the banana ir.rdustry by further expanding its custorner base to comrnercial/ industrial

accounts. In November 2000, the Cornpany braved the sluggish stock market and becanie the first Davao-

based, Davao-oriented company to l ist in the Phil ippine Stock Exchange ("PSE'' or the "Exchange"). The

proceeds of the init ial public offering wele used to expand the Companr"s production capacity and

capabil it ies. In Septernber 2009, the Cornpan.v decided to spin off the operatiotts and maintenance of its

p last ics manufactur ing in terest  to  a separate jur id ica l  ent i t ) ' .  Thus,  Macondray 'Plast ics Products.  Inc.  (MPPI)
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\ \ 'as then incorporated and regis tered wi th the SEC on Septenrber  25.2009 and becalne a whol ly  orvned

sLrbsidiar-y of the Cornpany. lrnmecliatel-v- thereafter. a deed of convel'ance u'as execLlted on October 13' 2009

ri,here the Corrpan,v shall transf'er all of its assets and liabil i t ies relating to the plastics nlanufacturing interest

to Mppl  rv i th  ef fect  upon the approval  by the SEC of  MPPI 's  appl icat ion for  increase in author ized capi ta l

srock ( the ' 'Ass ignrnent ' ' ) .  Accordingly ,  MPPI assumed the management of  the Cotnpany's  p last ic  products

rranulacturing operations and absorbed all the employees of the Cornpanl' r 'vho $'ere all connected to the

plast ics nranufactur ing business at  that  t ime.

On October 1.2009.  a Share purchase Agreernent  ( the "SPA' ' )  rvas executed betu 'een RVO Capi ta l  Ventures

Corporat ion ( . ,RVO Capi ta l " )  and MCl.  The t ransact ion involves the acquis i t ion b-v RVO Capi ta l  o f  MCI 's

SS" j++.OOO shares in  t l te  Cornpany u,h ich represents MCI 's  ent i re in terest  in  the Cornpany' .  S ince MCI 's

interest represents approrirnatel ,, eeV" of the Compan,v's outstanding capital stock. the acquisit ion thereof

triggered t 'he applicaiion of the mandatory tender offer rule of the Securit ies Regulation Code ("SRC"). After

the conduct of the tender offer. RVO Capital acquired a total of 112,656.148 shares representing 95% of the

Companl"s then issued and or-rtstanding capital stock.

On Novernber 18,  2009,  the Company and a l l  the stockholders of  Alphaland Development ,  lnc (ADl)

entered into a Share Srvap Agreement (SSA) for a share-ior-share sr'vap of all of ADI's issued and

outsranding shares (as wel i  as ex is t ing shareholders 'advances/deposi ts  for  fu ture stock subscr ipt ions)  in

exchange io1. n.ru shares to be issued b,v ALPHA. Each ADI share rvas exchanged for approximately 5.08

ALPHAshares .o ra ro ta l  o f  1 .269 .731 .04  1  sha reso f  ALPHA.A f te r thesha re - fo r - sha res \ ! ' ap .ADI  becamea

rvholl1,,owned subsidiary of ALPHA thereby allowing the diversif ication into the propert-v development

sector. In vierv of the foregoing, the Companl, applied for t l ie amendment of its Anicles of Incolporation

involving the (a) change iniorporate name from "Macondray Plastics, Inc," to "Alphaland Corporation". (b)

change in primary purpose frorn plastics manufacturing to that of a holding company. (c) change in principal

place of business from Davao City to Makati City. and (d) increase in its authorized capital stock frorr

P400.0 rn i l l ion to P5.0 b i l l ion.  among others.  These amendments were approved by the SEC on Apr i l  7 .

2 0 1 0 .

On Decelrber  23,  2010.  ALPHA s igned a Memorandum of  Understanding ("MOU")  wi th Macondray

Phi l ipp ines Co. .  lnc.  ( "MPCI") ,  rvhere the la t ter  is  of fer ing to buy ALPHA's ent i re in terest  in  MPPI upon

complet ion of  the Assignment  and rvhich ALPHA accepted for  a reasonable considerat ion to be determined

nearer to the Assignnlent.

On Apr i l  29.2011,  the SEC approved the increase in author ized capi ta l  s tock of  MPPI that  conpleted the

Assignrnent and total spinoff of MPPL IT paved the r.va1, for the Company"s eventual sale of MPPI to MPCI.

A Deed of  Absolute Sale rvas executed on October 28,2011 for  a considerat ion of  F254.0 mi l l ion.

Status of Operations

a. Agreernent betrveen two major stockholders

ln. lanuary 20 14,  l i t igat ion (both in  the Phi l ipp ines and abroad) ensued betrveen the tu 'o major

shareholder groups of ALPHA. namely: the group affi l iated rvith Alphaland Iloldings (Singapore)

Pte. Limited (the "AH Group") and the group affi l iated , 'vith Mr. Roberto V. Orrgpin (the ' 'RVO

Group") .  In  Apr i l  201'1,  the AH Group and the RVO Group s igned deta i led terms of  reference

leading to an amicable settlement (subject to the execution of definit ive agreenlents). On June 5.

20l4,adef in i t ive agreement  was s igned betrveen the AH Group and the RVO Group as wel l  as

ALPHA. Under that  agreement :

1.  ln  exchange tbr  the sale by ALPHA of  cer ta in assets and l iab i l i t ies d iscussed belorv.  AH and

Masrickstar Corporation ("MC"), a shareholder, agree to sell, and ALPHA agrees to acquire all of

the shares of  s tock of  ALPHA orvned by AH and MC ( the "Alphaland Shares") .  In  addi t ion to the

Alphaland Shares,  AH and MC also agree to pa1,  ALPHA F2.5 b i l l ion in  cash in nvo t ranches.

2.  ALPHA agrees to cause the sale of  the fo l lorv ing assets and thei r  corresponding l iab i l i t ies

(currently orvned by ALPHA's subsidiaries and affi l iates) to a newly incorporated colnpan,v orvned

by AH and MC:

201-l SEC Forn 20-lS
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a.  100% of  Alphaland Makat i  Torver  (AMTI) ,  rvh ich o ivns The Alphaland To, ' r 'er  a long A1'a la

Avenue.  Makat i  Ci t l ' ;

b .  10096 of  each of  Alphaland Mar ina Clr - rb.  lnc.  (AMCI)  and of  Alphaland Mar ina Corporat ion

(AMC),  uhich is  current ly  developine the Alphaland Mar ina & Country 'Club pro ject  in  the

Manila Ba,v reclarnation area in Paraiiaque City';

c .  5070 ou,nership of  the Alphaland Group in Alphaland Bay Ci t l ,Corporat ion (ABCC).  the- io int

venture colnpan)' formed by, the Alphaland Group and the Wenceslao Group to develop the 32-

hectare Alplialand Bay Cit. it project at the Aseana Business Park. Parariaque Citl ' ; and

d. 60%o interest bv the Group on the Boracal, Gatervay' ploject. the unincorporated ,ioint venture

betrveen the Group ancl Akean Resorts Corporation to develop the latter's approximately 500

hectares of  land in Cat ic lan (Malay)  and Nabas.  Aklan.

As  o f  March  31 .  2014  and  December  31 ,  2013 ,  t he  ca rn ' i ng  va lues  o f  t he  asse ts  and  l i ab i l i t i es

related to the above sale are as fbllolvs:

Account

M a r c h  3 1 "  2 0 1 4  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 1 3
Assets (L iab i l i t ies )  Assets (L iab i l i t ies )

Current assets
Investment propeftles
Investment  in  a jo int  venture
AFS investments
Other noncurrent assets
Current  l iab i l i t ies
Long-term debt
Deferred tax l iab i l  i t ies
Othe r  noncu l ren t  I  i ab i l  i t i es

914,531,719
\  U \ d  /  |  /  r  / 4

13,344,395,606
1,909,364.390

168.656,53  8
( t . 7 7 6 . 1 8 2 . 1 7  t )
(2 .343,14  I  .670)

(823.668,032)
670,6'77,406

P843,-199.950
5.928. i91 .716

13.344.395.606
1.909.36i1.390

r  5 2 . 3 2 1 . 0 1 t )
( 1 . 6 8 1 . 1 ; 1 3 , 3 5 5 )
(2.354.046,392)

(763.800,323)
(670,611.106)

As of  June 18.  2014.  2011.  ALPHA is  a l ready in  the process of  prepar ing the necessar ,v  documents

to implement  the def in i t ive agreement .

After the implementation of these transactions. the AH Group rvil l  no longer be a shareholder of

ALPHA. ALPHA u ' i l l  rernain rnajor i ry-owned and contro l led b1 ' the RVO Group.  Atrong the assets

that  lv i l l  remain wi th the Group are;

l .  A lphaland Southgate Tower
2.  Alphaland Makat i  P lace ( inc luding the investment  in  "The Ci t .v  Club")

3.  Alphaland Bales in Is land Club
4.  Alphaland Baguio Mounta in Lodge Hornes

b.  Del is t ing procedures in i t ia ted by the PSE

On Apr i l  2 .2014, the PSE in i t ia ted del is t ing procedures against  ALPHA for  a l leged d isc losure

vio lat ions,  rvh ich have been substant ive ly  admit ted by ALPHA. Hou,ever .  the delav in  the

disclosure r.vas brought about by a good faith effort to arrive at an amicable settlement rvith the AH

Croup. The delisting procedure is currently undergoing the hearing stage at the PSE. During the

hear ing conducted rn May 201.1.  the PSE hear ing panel  d i rected ALPHA to in lbnn the PSE as soon

as a definit ive settlement agreement is reached betrveen the AH Group and the RVO Group. On

June 17,20 14,  another  hear ing was conducted by the PSE rvhere ALPHA forrnal ly  in formed the

PSE, of the settlement betr.veen ALPHA and the AH Group and that both parties support a voluntary

del is t ing.  The PSE hear ing panel  then informed ALPHA that  i t  rv i l l  de l iberate to deternr ine i ts

recomrnendation to the PSE Board of Directors or if there,'vould be a need for another hearing' As

of  June 18,20 14.  the PSE has not  yet  made a decis ion on the mat ter .  Horvever .  wi th the s igning of

that definit ive agreement (rvhich contains, among others. both parties' commitment to pursue

voluntary del is t ing) ,  management expects that  the PSE rv i l l  eventual ly  grant  ALPHA's appl icat ion

fbr vo I untar.v de I isting.
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c.  Disputes u ' i th  jo int  venture (JV) par tner

For the Alphaland Bay Ci ty  Pro. ject .  the Group has a. jo int  venture u ' i th  a group led by D.M.

Wences lao  &  Assoc ia tes .  l nc .  (DMWAI )  ( t he  "Wences lao  Group" ) .  I n  2013 .  l i t i ga t i on  ensued

betrveen the Group and the Wenceslao Group because of  the Wenceslao Group's at tempts to dela l '

the construct ion and development  of  the Group's Mar i r ra Clr - rb pro ject .  The set t lement  of  th is

d ispute is  a lso among the mat ters covered b,v the def i r r i t ive asreer .nent  s igned on Jul ie  5.2014 by '

the RVO Group and AH Group.  Deal ing rv i th  the Wenceslao Group ( in  order  to.  among others.

set t le  the d ispute betu 'een the Wenceslao Group and the Group) rv i l l  be the sole responsib i l i t l  o f

the AH Group as provided for  in  the set t lement  agreelnent .

Alphaland Southgate Tou,er  cont inues to prov ide recurr ing cash f lorvs:  the Group has substant ia l ly

conrpleted i ts  nra. jor  Club pro jects,  namel 'u , ,  A lphaland Bales in Is land Club and The Ci t l 'C lub at

Alphaland Makat i  P lace.  On Apr i l  30.2014.  the Group has sold i ts  20-96 investr lent  in  the Shangr i - la  at

the For t  pro ject  for  F l .7 b i l l ion.  Current ly .  the Group is  negot iat ing rv i th  a bank for  an addi t ional  loan of

at  least  Pl .0 b i l l ion to f lnance the complet ion of  the Alphaland Makat i  P lace pro" ject .  These funds

( together  rv i th  the proceeds f rom the set t lement  wi th AH Group) rv i l l  a l lorv the Group to cont lnue i ts

.urr .nt  and future pro jects.  Af ter  the implementat ion of  the c lef in i t ive agreement .  the Group wi l l  focus

on the development  and complet ion of  i ts  Alphaland Makat i  P lace pro ject  and Alphaland Baguio

Mountain Lodges pro ject  and the operat ion of  i ts  completed pro jects

Fo l l o i v i ng  i s  t he  l i s t  o f  t he  s i gn i f i can t  l ega l  subs id ia r i es  o f  ALPHA as  o f  March  31 .201 '1 .  December  31 .

2013 and Decetnber 31 '  20 l2  (co l lect ive l l ' re ferred to as the Croup):

Percentage of
Ef tect ive Ou'nership

companv  Na tu re  o f  Bus iness  2014  201  i  2012

Alp l r r l " rd D.* l "pment .  Inc.  (ADl)  Real  property  development  100 100 100

Alphaland Bales in Is land Resort  Corp.  Real  property  development  100 100 100

A lpha land  Maka t i  P lace .  I nc . (n )  Rea l  p rope r t y ' deve lopmen t  100  100  100

AMTI ( " )
AMC(N)
Alphaland Reclamat ion Corp.
Aklan Boracay,  Propert ies.  Inc.
2258  B lue  Ho ld ings  r ' ) ( n l

A lpha land  Av ia t i on .  I nc . rb )
Alphaland Hold ings Conipany.  Inc. ( ' )
A lphaland Southgate Restaurants.  Inc
Choice lnsurance Brokerage.  Inc. 'nr ' " '
' " 'Through ADI
t"' Incorporatetl in 20l2
' ' '  lncorporated in 2013
(drAssociate in  2012 and 20 I  I
''' Throtrgh Blue Holdings

Results of Operations Results of Operations

Real  proPert l '  develoPment
Real  property  development
Real  property  developntent
Real propert-v development
Hold ing compani
Aviat ion
Hold ing compani

(a)(d)  
Restaurantoperat ions
lnsurance brokerage

1 0 0  1 0 0
r 0 0  1 0 0
1 0 0 1 0 0
r  00  100

100 I  00
100 1 0 0
70 70 10

100
100
100
100
100
100

1 0 0
r 0 0

1 0 0
r 0 0

Years Ended
l , ' larch 11,2014

r Unau,lrt ici I
L larch 31,  2013 Decemher  31 ,2013

i .Aui  led l
Decenher  31 .2012

iUnauditedl rAirr l i t i i  arr i  . i :  R:stele

Re' , r t r . ]es
C:: ts  end Ei lpenses
ilt er lnt;r:ntr
l l r t  ln , : :nre

156 703 |]5J
116 50t 3J!
12 2l ! i  8 iJ
32 l3J ! t9

112 055 6{15
1 r G  t c f  i 1 l

l lB i85 I  19
j jJ gig 0rt0

I i l  ! : i  J l0
8li i t i  l3l

I  31 :50 i  0 (16
i  2 !0  901 i l 2

. 1 i  i 4 a  i a 1

:  l t l  : r  l r :  D n  i

J2r 21i !08
2 16 !  t11  lo j
2 171 r-,80 377
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ALPHALAND CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CON SOLIDATED STATE [NE I.] T S OF COMPR EHEN SIVE ITJCOfuI E

For  the  Three Months  Per iod  Ended

M a r e h  3 1 . 2 0 1 { I l " t l a r c h  3 1 .  2 0 1 3 \ - ! r iauce

- \ n l o u n t

REVENUE S
ie . r l  E .< t r l8  Sa es

Rer r t

a l i  ? i !

" l \  
184  7 , - ,1  10 l l :o

i l t  t lF ,3  77r j r  .1 .q

l l  91a  4 , - :E  l ' ^ : " to

1 0 1 8 . 1  7 i 1
77 . l -q :  I  jF

i 8 . 8 2 n : d a

8. t  7 t :  t08
, j1  9 ;T !  837

1 56 .703.054 1 4,047,449 10o/o

C O S T S  A N D  E X P E N S E S

o T H E R  l l ' J C O M E  { E X P E N S E S I

a a  n  a r .  s a l :  c i  A ; S  t u ' / e s 1 i l ' t r l s

| : : l  e : l  ? )  l l E r s e  ; n d  t i [ e f  l l f  a f  a  e  a  -  a i r j e 3

f ' : l  ! : l  r : t [ r e

= i i r ' t , ' r  i r e l  e a l , r l l ! s  a i  t s 5 c I  t i e :  a r d . ] l c r r l  l e r  i L i r e -  n e l

F n r e . i f  E l c l a r f l l e  D -  r  ( l r s s )  . e 1

80.21  1  J25

i , .B  9 ,18  1  t2 l
1 i j i ,7 igil

( 1  1 1 . 1  l ! 0 1
15.-j ,: l8a

t t i . l , . 1 : r 1  1 ' 4 r

i:r7 .1!r1 !l '- i0j

i 1  4 8 |  J [ 2 ]

i 2 4 , 1  ! i 1 2  i l " 3 l

8 i t  1 . 1

i 7 E  1 1 6  7 0 , {  |

1 t 9 : i
,.1.1 ir

1 ir l) ' lo
128. ro
I0 t l " l

G a r  l n t e  |  / a ! e  c l i a f , t e  D f  n , ; t 5 l t 1 e t l  : r D F e a € :

1 2 . ? 3 9 . 8 7 4

32.434.979

438.585.E1 9

434,979.000

426.345.945) -97%

9a2,544,021) -93"/"
INCOfulE BEFORE INCO'!lE TAX FROI.,]1

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

PROVISION FOR INCOME TA.X

C! : r  e i l

D : iE t . :a

'. 921 Zi't

l0  € i19  : r51

1 8  5 1 8
(27  i 1g  1^ , ' : \

1 0 i

90eo

NET INCOI ' IE  FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

I IJCOI , , ]E  FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIOI ' I  S

27.435,244 402.438.670 {375,003,42 6) -93%

0iri

27.435,244 402.438.670

4 1 8 . 8 5 7 . 7 ' 1 6

375.003.426 -93%
N E T  I N C O T i I E

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

!nfEa fed  ! i  ua tL0n ga tns  on  AFS n{e- ln le t ts

r [ ;n f le  ia t  enec l

g r'.1 : ' i  '  7:! 1 , t i : 9 7  1 i 2 469 264 2r t ,1 1 4  
" ' , a

(93  { r r r j  17 : r  i .1 r i  t :9  7 ,11 : )  (1L i  g2 t l .d2r jJ  1 !1 io

841.1  95 ,553 422.337.837 1Ua/ "

CO[,1P RE HEN SIVE INCOIVIE

l l P t  r c f ! r  e  a l l r  b l l a c  e  i c

E. lJ t? f  o dBf- i  ! f  t r te Pareni 21 .81,! 25F.

1 , i 1 0  c 1 2 l
402 .438 ,670

t  1D ' ,  7? i  t

8 2 1  i E 8  1 C 5
i 1 0 1  7 2 |

9 l t io

333" t

6lt

:t:3e,,

l l o f  c o f l r o  I Q  f t e r e : r 1 s

27,435.244 75.003.426 -93%

T0tal  a,r- i i r r-nlrers ;e faDnle Jt tr l i l ! taDle to

-c r ; , ;  tgtalg;5 cf  thE PafEtr l

i i D f  c c i l f D l  r ! , n t e f i S l s

8r l9  010 8CS

i4 .10  01  2 l

17 67? 7A'J
(3 - {8 .2 !11

868.630.797 82  1 .296 .38s 47,334,412 6"/o

The Group posted a lower consol idated net  income of  F32.4 mi l l ion for  the three months ended March 31,

2014 .  comoared  to  P435 .0  m i l l i on  f o r  t he  same pe r i od  i n  2014 .

P I1.0 nil l ion 85o%) Increose in Reventtes
Cor iso l idated tota l  revenues amounted to F156.7 mi l l ion and?142.7 mi l l ion for  the three n lonths ended

March 31.2014 and 2013,  respect ive ly .  The increase is  main ly  due to increase in other  income f rom

Alphaland Southgate Toi . r ,er .  This  is  complemented by revenues i rom AMPI 's  lease of  mal l  operat ion and

park ing s lots  and sales on restaurant  operat ion of  ASRI.

P9.E nillion (7 '%) Decrease in Costs qnd Expenses
Dec rease  f i om F146 .2  m i l l i on  i n  p r i o r  pe r i od  t o  P136 .5
provid ing subsid l '  for  the Clubs and decrease in salar ies
enlp lo) 'ees.

mi l l ion.  in  current  per iod is  main ly  due to not
and emolovee benef i ts  due to lesser  number of

P126.3 mill ion (97.2 %) Decrease in Other Income
Decrease f rom P438.6 mi l l ion in  pr ior  per iod to F12.2 mi l l ion.  in  current  per iod is  main lv  due to not

recogniz ing gain on fa i r  va lue of  investment  propert ies of  subsid iar ies and equi ty  p ick-up in  th gain on f 'a i r

va lue of  the Joint  Venture 's  investment  property  ln  Bay Ci ty .

) 0 1 1 5 8 ( -
P age

Fornt  )0-$
20

1 I p ha I ct nd C o rpo ra t r on



2013 vs. 2012
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The  Group  reached  a  reco rd  o f  F6 .153 .1  m i l l i on  conso l i da ted  ne t  i ncome in  2013 .  u ' h i ch  i s  a  remarkab le

c l i r nb  f r om 2012  ne t  i ncome o f  P2 "019 .2  m i l l i on .  To ta l  comprehens i ve  i ncome o f  t he  Group  i s  P11 .300 .7

n r i l l i o n  i n  2 0 1 3  a n d  P 1 1 . 1 8 0 . 5  m i l l i o n  i n  2 0 1 2 .

P253.0 mill ion (4876) [ncrease in Rerenues
The Group reached consol idated tota l  revenues amount ing to P784.0 mi l l ion and P530.9 mi l l ion fbr  the 1 'ear
ended December 31"  2013 and 2012.  respect ive ly .  The favorable growth is  on account  of  t l ie  recogni t ion of

rcvenue f rom sale of  condominium uni ts  and park ing s lots  of  AMPI us ing the percentage of  complet ion

nrethod.

Pl)0.3 nri l l ion 99%o increase in Costs qnd Expenses
lncrease f iom P425.2 mi l l ion in  pr ior  per iod to F845.6 mi l l ion in  current  pef iod is  due to recogni t ion of  cost

f r .om sale of  condominium uni ts  and park ing s lots  of  AMPI and to h igher  operat ing expenses ( largely

ut i l i t ies.  secur i ty  and - jani tor ia l  expenses)  of  Alphaland Southgate Torver  associated u ' i th  increased tenancv.

and h igher  taxes paid on fecognized gain on sale of  AFS investn lents ref lect ing st rong take up of  the

Group's secondarv sale of  Ci ty  Club and Bales in Is land Club preferred shares.
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PJ 913.5 mill i ttn 2()9%o lncrease in Ollter Inconte
The  s ign i f i can r  ne t  i nc rease  i n  o the r  i ncome o f  P ,1 .9 .13 .5  m i l l i on .  f r o rn  P2 .369 .0  n r i l l i on  i n  2012  to

p7 .312 .5  m i l l i on  i n  2013  came ma in l v  f r om the  122% g ro r . v th  i n  ga in  on  sa le  o f  AFS  inves t r l en t s .  154%o

higher gain on fa i r  va lue change of  investnrent  propert ies and 338% increase in equi t l  i r r  net  earn ings due to

.qui , i 'p l . f -up in  the gain on f i i r  va lue o1 'Alphaland Bay Ci ty  dur ing the year .  These lvere par t ia l ly 'o t fset  by

t r igher  in terest  expense in 2013 brought  about  bf  increased borrou ' inqs to f inance the Grorrp 's  pro jects

2012 vs.20ll
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The Group reached a record of  ?2.019.2 mi l l ion consol idated net  income in 2012.  \ ' \ 'h ich is  a fur ther

i n i p rovemen t  i n  201 I  ne t  i ncome o f  P1 .936 .0  m i l l i on .  More  remarkab le  i s  t he  P3 .469 .7  m i l l i on  c l i r nb  i n  t o ta l

c o m p r e h e n s i v e  i n c o m e .  f r o m  P 7 , 7 1 0 . 8  m i l l i o n  i n  2 0 1  I  t o  P 1 1 . 1 8 0 . 5  m i l l i o n  i n 2 0 1 2 .

Pll7.9 mill ion (29%) Inuease in Rerenues
Consol idated tota l  revenues amount ing to P530.9 mi l l ion and P4 13.0 mi l l ion for  the )ear  ended December

31,  2012 and20l l .  respect ive ly .  most ly  re lates to renta l  and other  income f rom Alphaland Southgate.  The

favorable sro\ \1h in  revenues is  on account  of  h igher  occupancY rate coupled by f ixed escalat ion of  renta l

fees dur ing the current  per iod.

P 1 33.0 million (15%o1 Increase in Costs qnLl Expenses

Increase f rom F292.3 mi l l ion in  pr ior  per iod to P425.2 mi l l ion in  current  per iod is  main ly  due to h igher

operat ing expenses ( largely ut i l i t ies,  secur i ty  and jani tor ia l  expenses)  of  Alphaland Soir thgate Tou'er

associated wi th increased tenancy,  and h igher  taxes paid on recognized gain on sale of  AFS investments

ref lect ing st rong take up of  the Group's secondary sale of  Ci ty  Club and Bales in ls land Club preferred

snares.
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P 1 2 3.1 mill ion (5'%) [ncrease in Other Income

The  ne t  i nc rease  i n  o the r  i ncome o f  P123 . , {  r n i l l i on .  f r om P2 .2 '15 .6  m i l l i on  i n  20 l l  t o  F2 .369  0  m i l l i on  i n

l0 l2 came main ly ,  f iom the 58%o grouth in  gain on sale of  AFS investrnents and 2o, 'o  h igher  gain on fa i r

ya lue cSapge of  investnrerr t  propert ies.  These lvere par t ia l ly  of fset  b1 '  h igher  in terest  expense in 2012

brought  about  by increased borrowings to f inance the Group's pro- iects.  most  of  l i 'h ich are tbr  del ivery in

2013.  Interest  incorre is  do." i 'n  b1 'P13.3 mi l l ion in  the current  y 'ear  c lue to h igher  ut i l izat ion of  cash to fund

the huge capi ta l  expendi tures of  the d i f l -erent  construct ion pro. i ! 'c ts '

Financial Condition

t t J l i t  - , : . : E t . l

T, : t a l  L raL . i l i t r es
Tct r r l  Er - r r t t

f i t ]  1EI  697 270
18 036 0 .11  806
5 1  1 3 1  6 5 1  J f i 4

As oI
h !a rch  31 ,  2014

i U n a u d r t e d  i

As  o f
D e c e n r b e r  3 1 , 2 0 1 3

iArd i te r l l
66 1l ,J i  f  15 7f i r ]
1 !  : iE tJ  i11  7 i - ' r
16  lJ25  r t ; J  001

As o f
Deceml:er 31, 7012

iArrrJi t r , i  rnd A.s Restatedl
i l  J J L I  5 I i  1 7 5
1 5  3 1 f  2 4 3  5 J 1
35 52J  211 63J
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TOTAL LIABILITIES AI iD EOUITY [s  16 ]  6 ! r i  270 t q  { : .  D : a  7 l - .  J  9 l :  i 2 '  i 1 r :  r o :

To ta l  asse ts  o f  t he  Group  g rew  by  P  2 .972 .6  m i l l i on  o r  40  ,  f r om P  66 .195 .1  m i l l i on  as  o f

D e c e m b e r  3 1 . 2 0 1 3  t o  P 6 9 , 1 6 7 . 7  m i l l i o n  a s  o f  M a r c h  3 1 . 2 0 1 4 .

P t ,173.2 mill ictn 675%.1 Inuectse in Cash und Cash Ecluit 'alent-s

S ign i f i can t  i nc rease  f rom F173 .8  m i l l i on  t o  P1 ,347 .0  m i l l i on  i s  due  to  rece ip t  f r om co l l ec t i on  o f  advances  to

assoc ia tes .  SGCPI  and  FBSHI  amoun t i ng  to  P979 .5  m i l l i on .

P11l 3 nri l l ion (5%4 Increase in Lond and Developtttent Costs

Projects c lass i f ied under th is  account  per ta in to the Group's proport ionate in terest  in  Alphaland Makat i  P lace

and Alphaland Tower pro jects,  which are in tended for  sa le.  Increase f i 'om P2.286.8 mi l l ion to F2,398.1

mi l l ion is  on account  of  substant ia l  progress in  thei r  construct ion and development  of  AMPI.

P206.0 mill ion (17%') Increase in Advances to Relctted Porties

lncrease in advances to re lated par t ies is  main ly  at t r ibutable to the erpansion pro. iects of  the ls land Club

fac i l i t i es  t ha t  we re  f unded  by  AB IRC in  beha l f  o f  A lpha land  Ba les in  I s l and  C lub .  I nc .  (AB IC I ) .  AB IRC has

completed i ts  comnt i tment  for  the construct ion of  the ls land Club and i ts  fac i l i t ies under the Del 'e lopnlent

:0 I 1 SEC f;orm 20-]S
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Agreernent .  Fur ther  construct ion costs for  addi t ional  v i l las and enhancernent  of  the c lub fac i l i t ies shal l  be

for  the account  of  ABICI .

P 176. I mi// ittrt ( l0%,) lncrea're in Other Cut'rent , lssets

lncrease in other  current  assets is  pr imar i lv  due to increase in advances to contracto l 's  and Input  VAT

perta in ing to on-goi l lg  construct ion pro. iects of  AMPI '

P917.3 rnil l ion (3(%) Inc'rettse in .4FS Int)estments

Net  increase in AFS lnvest t rents is  pr i rnar i ly  due to appreciat ion of  f 'a i r  market  va lues of  shares of  Bales in

preferred shares. The Group establishes the fair value ofthe prefen-ed shares in inventory using the recent

all 's length market transaciions, lvhich is the Gror.rp's transacted sell in{r price to third parties.

P 1 ,11 5.3 mill ion ( l0%,.) Increase in Investment Propertie\

lncrease f rorn p1,1.590.0 rn i l l ion to p l6. l l8 .9 mi l l ion is  at t r ibutable to t l ie  issuance of  -557.567.000 common

shares of  ALpHA at  an issuance pr ice of  F2.5 per  share to the regis tered orvners of  parcels  of  land in

conrrect ion rv i th  Alphaland Baguto Mounta in Log Hornes Plo- iect '

To ta l  l i ab i l i t i es  o f  t he  Group  amoun ted  toP18 ,036 .0  m i l l i on  andF l9 ,369 .3  m i l l i on  as  o f  March  3 l '  2014

and  Dece lnbe r  i  l .  l 0  |  3 .  r espec t i ve l r  '

P87.2 million (l%,) Decrease in Long-term Debt - net of defetedJinancing costs

The decrease of  F87.2 mi l l ion p. , - tu in,  to  pr inc ipal  payrnents made b.v ADI.  AMTI and AMPI dur ing the

first quaftef.

PI.500.0 nti l l ion (t00%1 DeUease in Deposits IntendedJbr Ecltt it l 'SubsUiptiort

The 100% decrease rs at t r ibutable to the convers ion of  the F1.500.0 rn i l l ion deposi ts  in tended for  equi ty

subscr ipt ion ro equi ty .  A stockholder  subscr ibed 600,000,000 col r l rnon shares at  F2.5 per  share in  January

2011 .

P96.5 mi!lion (2%o) Inlease in Defbrrecl tax littbilities

l 'he increase pertains to the increase in fair value ofthe Balesin Island Club preferred share.

Tota l  equi ty  of  the Group jumped by 9% or  by F4,305.9 mi l l ion,  f rom P46,825 8 mi l l ion as of

Dece rnbe r  3  l .  2013  to  P51 ,13  I  . 7  m i l l i on  as  o f  March  3  l '  2014 .

P I ,371.9 mill ion (75(%) Increase in Capital Stock and P2,062.1 nil l ion O l '%1

On Januarv 2014" ALPHA issued 557,567,000 corrmon shares to the regis tered owners of  parcels  of  land

and 600,000,000 comrnon shares to a stockholder .  On Februarr- -  7.2014" ALPHA cornpleted i ts  minor i ty

of fer ing of  108.336,866 common shares and on February 19.2014,  ALPHA issued a tota l  o f  109.000'000

ne\\, colnlron sltares to three separate investors throLrgh private placernent. The cornmon shares sold dLrring

the first quarter lvere issued at P2.50 per share.

P81 1 2 million (1%o) Increase in Unrealized Gqins on AFS [nvestntents

The significant increase is brought about by the increase in fair market value of the Balesin tsland Club

orefen'ed shares.
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2013 vs. 2012
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Total  assets of  the Group grew b) '  P 14.754.5 rn i l l ion or  29yo.  f ronr  P 51. '1 '10.6 mi l l ion as of

D e c e n r b e r  3 1 . 2 0 1 2  t o  P 6 6 " 1 9 5 . 1  m i l l i o n  a s  o f  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 1 3 .

P231.3 nti l l ion (57%o1 Decre(tse in C:ash and C(lsh Ecluivalents

Decrease f rom F408.0 mi l l ion to P 173.8 rn i l l ion 2013 is  brought  about  by pro ject  developrnent  and

operat ing expendi tures of  the Group.

P82.I nilt ion (38%,) lnqease in Trade Qnd Other Receivables
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Increase f i .om p2 17.0 mi l l ion to P299.1 mi l l ion came pr i rnar i ly '  f rom insta l l rnent  sa les of  AFS investrnents

comorised of Balesin lsland club and cit.v club preferred shares during the period'

P1, t15.1 nt i l l iong5%,)  !ncreaseinLuncl  c tndDet ,e lopnlenlancl  Park ing/otsforsct le

pro jects c lass i f ied under th is  account  per ta in to the Group's propor- t ionate in terest  in  Alphaland Makat i  P lace

and Alphaland Torver  pro jects,  rvh ich are in tended for  sa le.  lncrease t }om Fl , l7 l '4  mi l l ion to P2,286'8

mi l l ion is  on account  of  substant ia l  progress in  thei r  construct ion and developtnent '

P 1,003.6 mill ion t47E%.1 Increttse in Adt'trnces to Related Ptil ' t ies

lncrease in advances to re lated par t ies is  at t r ibutable to the development  costs re lat ing to expansion of  the

Is land Club f -ac i l i t ies that  r ie ie charged to ABICI .  ABIRC has colnpletec l  i ts  cotnmit rnent  for  the

constn lc t io l t  o f  the Is land Club and i ts  fac i l i t ies under the Developrnent  Agreenlent .  Fur ther  col ls t r l lc t ion

costs fbr  addi t ional  v i l las and enhancernent  o l the c lub fac i l i t ies shal l  be for  the account  of  ABICI '

P5,519.7 mill ion (22'%) Increcrse in AFS Investments

The increase ln assets is  at t r ibutable to the F 5.5 19.7 rn i l l ion increase in AFS investments.  f rot r l

p24.5g2.4 r r i l l ion to p30.102.0 mi l l ion due to increase in appreciat ion o l fa i r  market  va lues of  c lub shares

held. The Group establishes the fair value of the preferred shares in inventory using the recent artn's length

ntarket transactions. which is the Group's transacted sell ing cash price to third parties.

P65.5 million (4'%1 lncrease in Other Currenr Assets

Increase in other cuffent assets is primarily due to increase in advances to contractors and lnput VAT

perta in ing to on-goinc construct ion pro. iects.

P3,169.2 rnil l ion (3 l ' /o) Increase in Investntenl in a Joint l/enture

lncrease is attributable to the 50% equit,v pick-up in the gain on fair value of the Joint Venture's propefiy rn

Bay 'C i t y .

P3,632.0 mill ion (33%') Increase in In,-estntent Properties

Under this account are completed properties and properties under construction held to eam rentals or for

capi ta l  appreciat ion,  or  both.  Increase f i "om F10,958.0 mi l l ion to F14,590.  1 r r i l l ion represents act t ra l  pro. lect

developrnent expenditr-rres and fair value appreciation olinvestntent properlies during the period'

To ta l  l i ab i l i t i es  o f  t he  Group  amoun ted  to  P  19 ,369 .3  m i l l i on  anc l  P  I  5 ,916 .3  m i l l i on  as  o f  December  3  l ,  2013

and 20 I 2. respectivelr '.

P522.1 ntillion (l3%d Decrease in Trade ttnd Other Payables

Decrease in trade ancl other payables is attributable to the development costs relating to expansion of the

Ci t l 'C lub and the Is land Club tac i l i t ies that  u,ere t ransferred to AMPI and ABIRC. respect ive ly  and to

puj' l-,.nt of obligations related to the construction of the Group's project during the period'

P2,000.0 mill ion (100%1 Decrease in Loqns Pa1:6b19

On May 2013.  ABIRC's F2,000.0 mi l l ion outstanding loans payable wi th Bank of  Comrnerce rvas

ref inanced by, 'a  long- term loan under the P3.0 Bi l l ion OLSA fac i l i ty  rv i th  the same bank.

P3,029.6 ntillion (1 1'%1 Increctse in Long-term Debt - net of deferredfinoncing costs

In 2013.  AMTI made addi t ional  loan drarvdou,ns for  the tota l  amount  of  F778.0 mi l l ion.  against  i ts
p 2,.100.0 mill ion syndicated loan facil i ty for the construction of the Alphaland Tor'ver. These loan

drarvc lorvns were pania l ly  of fset  by AMPI 's  and ADI 's  pr inc ipal  loan repal ' lnents amount ing to P21.9

mi l l ion and F202.6 rn i l l ion dur ing the current  i ,ear .  ABIRC also rnade a drawdou'n amount ing to P500.0

rn i l l ion in  i ts  new long- term loan fac i l i t l 'o f  F3.000.0 mi l l ion wi th BOC.

P 1,666.8 million (39%'1 Inuease in Deferred 7"Qx Liabilities

lncrease f rom F4.287.0 mi l l ion to F5.953.8 rn i l l ion is  substant ia l ly  due to tax prov is ions re lated to gain on

fair value of investment properties and unrealized gain on AFS investments.

P317.9 mill ion (28%.) Decrease in Other Noncm'rent Liabil it ies

Decrease f i -om F l , l19.4 rn i l l ion to P83 1.5 rn i l l ion is  pr imar i ly  due to the t ransfer  of  the renra in ing l iab i l i ty

re lated to AMC's acquis i t ion of  AFS investnrents f rom noncurrent  to  current  l iab i l i ty .
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To ta l  ec lu i t y  o f  t he  Group  j umped  by  32% o r  by  P  11 .301 .5  m i l l i on .  t r o rn

D e c e m b e r  3 1 .  2 0 1 2  r o  P 4 6 , 8 2 5 . 8  m i l l i o n  a s  o f  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 1 3 '

Pj. /Jj.-? mill ion (32,%) Increase in L,nreuli:ei Gains on AFS Investrttents

The s igni t icant  increase is  brought  about  by the increase in f -a i r  market  va lue

investments contpr ised of  Ci ty '  Club and Bales in ls land Club preferred shares

P6.166.5 nil l ion 08'%) lnc:rease in Retuined Earnings

The increase is  brought  about  b1, the net  inconle of the croup dur ing the currenl

6.153.1 rn i l l ion and the other  cornprehensive income re lated to remeasurenlent

ADI  i n  2013  and  2012  an roun t i ng  t o  P l2 . ' 1  rn i l l i on  and  F i "0  m i l l i on .  r espec t i ve l r '

2012 vs.20ll
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To ta l  asse ts  o f  t he  Group  g rew  by  F  17 ,886 .8  m i l l i on  o r  53%o.  f r om P  33 ,553 .7  m i l l i on  as  o f

D e c e m b e r 3 l . 2 0 l l t o P 5 l . 4 4 0 . 6 r r r i l l i o n a s o f  D e c e m b e r 3 l , 2 0 l 2 . T h i s i s e v e n h i g h e r f r o r n t h e r e c o r d e d P

15 .569 .0  m i l l i on  asse t  g row th  i n  p r i o r  y ' ea r .

P567.0 mill ion (58'%) Decrectse in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Decrease f rom p975.0 mi l l ion ro P408.0 mi l l ion 2012 is  brought  about  by extensive pro ject  development

expendi tures of  the GrouP.

35.5:.1. :91.6-1' t

51-,r{0_r: i . t -J

2011 SEC Form 20' lS

Page 26
'1 I p ho lon d C orpo rat io n



P19.3 tnil l ion 09%l Increose in Trade and Other Rc'ceivables

lncrease f i .or r  p l67.g nr i l l ion to p2 17.0 mi l l ion carne pr inrar i lv  f i 'om insta l lment  sales of  AFS investments

cornpr ised of  Bales in Is land Club and Ci ty  Club preferred shares dur ing the per iod

P185.5 nti l l ion (7l '%) Increctse in Lund antl Develr'tpnrenl
pro jects c lass i f ied under th is  account  per ta in to the Group's proport ionate in terest  in  Alphaland lVlakat i  P lace

und Alphulund Tol r 'er  pro jects,  lvh ich are in tended for  sa le.  Increase f rorn F685.9 nr i l l ion to FI . l7 l  4  mi l l ion

is orr aicount of substantial progress in their construction and development.

P 1 3.831.9 mill irtn ( 129%,1 Increase in AFS lnt'estntents

Bulk of  the grorvth in  assets is  at t r ibutable to the P13.835.0 mi l l ion increase in AFS invest tnents.  f iorn F

10.14i .4 rn i l l ion to p24.582.4 rn i l l ion pr imar i lv  due to increase in c lub shares held in  inventory and in

appreciation o1. their fair market values. The Croup establishes the fair value of the pret-erred shares in

inventor .v  us ing the recent  anl 's  length rnarket  t ransact ions.  r .vh ich is  the Group's t t 'ansacted sel l in{ :  pr ice to

th ird parties.

P2,663.3 milLion (32'%) lncreuse in lnt'eslment Properties

Under this account are completed properlies and properties under construction held to earn rentals or for

capi ta l  appreciat ion,  or  both.  Increase f rom F8.294.8 mi l l ion to F10.958.0 mi l l ion represents actual  pro ject

development expenditures and fair value appreciation of investment properlies during the period'

To ta l  l i ab i l i t i es  o f  t he  Group  a rnoun ted  toF15 ,916 .3  m i l l i on  and  P9 ,216 .0  m i l l i on  as  o f  Dece rnbe r  31 .2012

and 20 1 I ,  respect ive ly .

P 1 ,115.2 mill ion 10'% Increase in Trade and Other Palsbltt

lncrease f rorn F2.g32.g mi l l ion to F3.g7g.1 mi l l ion is  pr imar i l .v  on account  of  unbi l led charges re lated to the

construction of the Group's projects as of vearend

P1,000.0 mill ion 100'% Increase in Lrtans Pq'abl, '

Ir i the flrst quanef of 2012. ABIRC obtained a F2.0 bil l ion credit l ine from Bank of Courrnerce to further

finance the construction of the Balesin Island Club, which was fully drawn and outstanding as of December

3 r . 2 0 1 2 .

P]'351,5 mill ion (15%) IncreQse in Long'term Deb|. net o/ deferredfnoncing cclst.s

ln 2012.  AMTI made addi t ional  loan drawdorvns in  the tota l  amount  of  P602.0 mi l l ion,  against  i ts
p2.400.0 mi l l ion syndicated loan fac i l i ty  for  the construct ion of  the Alphaland Tol r 'er .  rvh i le  AMPI a lso

made a ser ies of  loan drawdorvns in  the tota l  amount  of  F900.0 mi l l ion against  i ts  orvn P1.750.0 mi l l ion

sy.'ndicated loan facil i ty. These loan drarvdou,ns were partially offset b1'ADI's principal loan repayrnents

tota l ing to F155.5 mi l l ion dur ing the current  year .

P1,161.1 mill ion (52'%) lncrease in Defbrred Tax Liabil it ies

lncrease f rom F2.882.6 mi l l ion to F4,287.0 mi l l ion is  substant ia l ly '  due to tax prov is ions re lated to gain on

fair value of investment properties and unrealized gain on AFS investments.

P707.8 nti l l ion (160%) increase in Other Noncttrrent Liahil it ies

lncrease f rorn F44 1.7 mi l l ion to F1,149.4 mi l l ion is  on account  of  the increase in l iab i l i ty  re lated to AMC's

acquis i t ion of  AFS investntents,  of fset  by the t ransfer  of  the rernain ing l iab i l i ty  re lated to AMPI 's  and

ABIRC's acquis i t ion of  AFS investments f rom noncurrent  to  current  l iab i l i t l ' .

' fo ta l  
equi ry  of  the Croup jumped by 46% or  by F 11.186.5 mi l l ion,  f rorn P2. '1 .331.8 r r i l l ion as of

Dece rnbe r  31 .  201  I  t o  F35 ,524 .3  m i l l i on  as  o f  December  31 ,  2012 .

P9,1 58.3 nil l ion (128%) InUease in Unrealized Gains on AFS Investtnents

The significant increase is brought about by the additional inventory olBalesin lsland Club preferred shares,

as \\,ell as increase in fair market value olthe Group's total AFS investments comprised of City Club and

Balesin lsland Club pret-ered shares.
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P2.022.1 mill ion (35(%) Inct'euse in Retotned Ettrningr

The increase is brought aboirt by, the net incorne oi the Group during the current period in the atlrount of

P2 .019 .2  m i l l i on .

Comnt i t tnents

a. Corporate Guarant; ' '

i .  AMpl .  a rvhol l l ,orvned subsid iary through ADl .  entered in to a Joint  venture Agreernent  r r i th

BSp to develop the Alphaland Makat i  P lace Project .  Pursuant  to the Joint  Venture Agreetnent .

ALpHA has issued a corporate guarant.v in favor of BSP lvhereby. in the event AMPI is r 'rnable to

corrplete the project (for reasons attributable to the fault of AMPI). ALPHA shall pal BSP the

arnount  of  F600.0 mi l l ion in  exchange for  BSP's l5-70 share in  the shar ing scheme as def ined in the

Joint Venture Agreement.

i i . on April 20. 2012. the BoD approved to constitute a corporate guarant)' in_ the nlarimum

arnount  of  F2,000.0 mi l l ion in  connect ion rv i th  the F10,000.0 mi l l ion term loan fac i l i t l 'obta ined by

FBSHI. a 20%o-owned associate. from Metropolitan Bank and Trust Cornpanl'. The Group's

guaranty is in favor of Shangri-la Properlies, Inc. and Shangri-la Asia Limited. the rnajoritY o\\rlers

o f  FBSHI .

On Apr i l  21.2014.  the BOD approved the d isposi t ion of  the Group's 20% in SGCPI and FBSHI.

on Apr i l  30,  2014,  ADI sold i ts  20% stake.  Accordingly ,  the guaranty has been cancel led.

b.  Const t 'uct ionContracts

The Group entered into various construction contracts for the developnlent of its projects. Total

contract value committed for the significant construction contracts as of Decelrber 3 I . 2012

amounted to F3.168.8 mi l l ion.  Tota l  advances to contractors a l .nounted to F8'1 1.3 rn i l l ion and

? i3 i . 8  m i l l i on  as  o f  March  31 .  20 l z l  and  December  31 ,  2013 ,  respec t i ve l l ' .  The  s ign i f i can t

construction contracts that gave rise to the advances are as follor'vs:

A D I
Tota l  advances to contractors amounted to F 106.4 mi l l ion and P 105.8 rn i l l ion as of

March 31,  2014 and December 31,  2013.  respect ive ly ,  for  the supply of  labor ,  mater ia ls  and

installation of pathwa1,,s, exterior glass. and others for Alphaland Southgate Torver and supply of

petroleum for the Caticlan Project.

A M P I
Total advances to contractors arnounted to ? 424.1 mill ion and P 360.4 mill ion as of

March 31,20 l4  and December 31.2013,  respect ive ly ,  for  the c iv i l ,  s t ructura l .  and masonry rvorks

and supply and insta l la t ion of  mater ia ls  fbr  Alphaland Makat i  P lace '

A B I R C
Total  advances to contractors amounted to F260.1 mi l l ion and P17.6 as of  March 31.  2014 and

December 31,  2013,  respect ive ly ,  for  the suppl .v  of  labor .  mater ia ls  and equiprnent  and a l l  re lated

construct ion works in  var ious par ts  of  Alphaland Bales in Is land Club.

AMTI
Tota l  advances to contractors amounted to P37.0 mi l l ion and n i l  as of  March 31,  20 14 and

December 31.  2013.  respect ive ly ,  for  the rnechanical .  c iv i l .  s t ructura l .  archi tectura l .  denio l i t ion and

structural retrofitt ing r.vorks and suppl;- of materials for Alphaland Torver.

Change in Account ins Pol ic) '

L ln 2013, PFRS II replaced PAS 31, Interests in ,Joint l 'entures, and SIC 13,.Jointlt '  Conrrolled

Eptit ies - Non-lVonetary Contributions bt, l/ennrrers. PFRS I I removed the option to account for

jo int l i ,  contro l led ent i t ies us ing proport ionate consol idat ion.  Instead,  jo int ly  conn'o l led ent l t ies that

rneet the definit ion of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The

application of PFRS ll has an irnpact to the Group's accoutttittg for its interest in ABCC' a joinl
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venlure.  pr ior  to  rhe t ra l rs i r ion to pFRS 11.  ABCC rvas c lass i f ied as a. jo int lv  contro l led ent i ty  and

the Grogp's share of  the assets.  l iab i l i t ies.  revenue.  and expenses was proport ionate l i 'consol idated

l r r  the consol idated f inancia l  s tatements.  Upon adopt ion of  PFRS l l .  the Group has deterrn ined that

i ts  in terest  in  ABCC is  c lass i f ied as a. jo int  venture to be accout l ted for  us ing the equi ty  method'

The t ransi t ion r i ,as appl iec l  ret rospect ive ly  as requi red by PFRS l l  and the l0 l2 and 2011

contparat ive in forrnat ion $ 'ere restated.  
- fhe 

i rnpact  of  applv ing PFRS l l  on the Group's

consol idated t lna l lc ia l  s tatenlents is  as fo l lo lvs:

I  nc rease (  Decrease )

Decernber - l  l .
2 0 1 2

. lanuan '  I .
20t2

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Cash and other  current  assets

Investrnent  tn  a, io int  venture

I  nvestr r rent  propert les
Trade and other  pay 'ables

Othe r  noncu r ren t  l i l b i l i t i es
Eq u it) '

(P7.  I  25)
1 0 . 1 7 5 . 1 9 5 . 4 8 1

(  |  0 . 8 2 5 . 2 2 3 . 1 3 1 )
(11 .05  s .852 )

(605,e78.e2s  )

(F7 .025 )
9 . 4  r  5 . 4 9 1 . 7 1  8

( 9 . 7 5  r . 3 8 5 . 0 0 0 )
(13 . i  5  8 .7s  7)

(292.541. - -s50)

lncrease (Decrease

Years Ended Decernber 3 I

2012 201 I

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Gain on fa i r  va lue change of  investment
DroDert les

Costs and expenses

( P 1 . 0 4 , 1 . 7 9 1 , 2 5 0 )
(696.9e5 )

73  0 ,656.880

(Pe75, r  38 ,500)
(8 .529.577)

67 4  .067 .37  3g . l L l i 1 r  i r r  n e l  i n c o m e  o l a  i o i n t  v e n t u r cand associates
(3  r  3 ,43  7 .3  75  ) (292._541 .5 ,s0  )Income before income tax

Prov i s i on  l b r  t ncome tax (313, ,+37,375 ( 2 9 2 . 5 4 1 . - s 5 0
P-Net  incorne

lncrease ( Decrease)

Yea rs  Ended  December  3 l
t 0 l 2 2 0 r I

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operat ing act iv i t ies
lnvest ing act iv i t ies

/ P i  l l i \ / p i  ) 1 5 \

r  P i  l 7 <  r  (  F 5 . l l 5  r, ' ' - -
F inanc ing  ac t i v i t i es
Net  increase in cash and cash equivalents

Comparative Key Performance Indicators

Pprfonnanre In.l icalor I l, lanner ol Calculation

l r tatch 31,20'14
iUnardi tedl

t l a r ch  31 ,2013
{lJnaudiledl

0ecember  31 .2013
l A u d i t p d )

0ecember 31,  2012
iAudired and As Restatedl

: l

t : .e: l - :a3fr f  !  t ! i1 ! ,? '

r ;  i t r  ( ; ' :  i i j r  l r  |  1 . 1  1  ! l  i  r !  1  l ] i J ' : 1 . .  
-  : ' .

- . . )  = . , . : . a t  t ;  " _ : ,  : , . s  : j - ,

t S n a : : i r ; q . l r a l l i :  !  :

: 1 :  i t : t e n l  a l t 5  i a t i l , r l 1 !  1 i , l !  1 !  1  I ' j l  J r

' l t t  ' : t r r i  t , . i r : , i ; ! ;  l l i a

I  35:! iS arf  r f l  1 l ' t  :er : f !31, 1 i . iE? , I  fa i

e l . r r l  l ' q l r l

l ; i  f t t r t e  t r ! r  S i e l 3 l a

: l l i i i l ! t ! f :  : i t  i ,  : r I i r ] 1 f i

: ! f  l a 1 l iq ll ir l le i . : t t

No nrater ia l  o f f -balance sheet  t ransact lons,  arrangements.  obl igat ions.  and other  re lat ionships of  the Grotrp

wi th unconsol tdated ent i t ies \ \ 'ere created dur ing the year .
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As of  March 31.  20 14,  except  for  rvhat  has been noted in  the preceding.  there were no mater la l  events or

uncertainties knou,n to lnanagement that had a material irnpact on past performance, or that . 'vould have a

material inrpact on the furure operations. in respect of the follou'ing:

r  Known t rends.  demands.  cornmitments.  events or  uncer ta iut ies that  rvould have a lnater ia l  i rnpact

on the GrouP:
o Material comntitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expectecl to have a rnaterial

i tnpact  on the Group's shof t - term or  long- term l iqu id i t l ' ;

. Known trends. events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a

rnater ia l  favorable or  untavorable impact  on net  sa les/ revenues/ income f ion cont inuing operat ions:

.  S igni f lcant  e lements of  incorne or  loss that  d id not  ar ise f iorn the Group's resul ts  of  operat ions:  and

o N4ater ia l  changes in the f lnancia l  s tate lxents of  the Group f iorn the year  ended December 31.20 l2

t o M a r c h 3 l . 2 0 l 4 .

Financia l  Risk Manaeement Object ives and Pol ic ies

The Board of  Di rectors ( , ,BOD")  has overal l  responsib i l i ty  for  the establ ishrnent  and overs ight  of  the

Group's r isk nanagernent  f ramework.  The Group's r isk management pol ic ies are establ ished to ident i f l 'and

manage the Groupls exposure to financial risks, to set appropriate transaction l inits and controls. and to

moni tor  and assess r isks and compl iance to in ternal  contro l  pol ic ies.  Risk management pol ic ies and

structure are revierved regularly,to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activit ies'

The Group has exposure to equity price risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk from the use of its

financial instruments. The Croup's exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal as it does not normall;"

enter into transactions in currencies other than its functional currency. The BOD reviervs and approves the

policies for rnanaging each of these risks

Equi t ,v  Pr ice Rtsk
The Group's exposure to equity price pertains to its investment in quoted ordinary shares, lvhich is classified

as AFS investment  in  the consol idated balance sheets.  Equi ty  pr ice r isk ar ises f rom the changes in the levels

of eqLrity indices and value of individual stocks traded in the stock exchange. The effect of possible change

in equi t l ,  ind ices on the Group's equi t l ' '  is  min imal '

Credr t  Risk
The Group t rades only wi th recognized and credi tworthy th i rd par t ies.  l t  is  the Group's pol icy ' that  a l l

customers rvho ,,vish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verif ication procedures. In addition.

receivable balances are monitorecl on an ongoing basis rvith the result that the Group exposure to bad debts

is pot significant. For transactions that are not denontinated in the functional currency of the Parent

Company-. the Group does not offer credit terrns rvithout the specific approval of the Chiel'Finance Offlcer.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises

lrorr default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposut'e equal to the carrying alnoLlnt of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades rvith recognized third parties and related parlies. there is no requirement for

collateral. There are no other concentrations of credit risk r.vithin the Group.

Interest Rate Risk
Interesr rate risk arises from the possibil i ty that changes in interest rates , 'vi l l  aflect future cash florvs or the

fair values of f inancial instruntents. The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its

financial instruments rvith floating interest and/or f ixed interest rates. Fixed rate financial instrutrents are

subject to fair value interest rate risk while floating rate financial instrurnents are subject to cash flow

interest rate risk. Re-pricing of f loating rate financial instrurnents is done every three to six tnonths. Interest

on fixed rate financial instrurnents is f ixed unti l rnaturity of the instrument.

The Group's exposure to the r isk of  changes in market  in terest  rates re lates pr i r rar i ly ' to  the Group's long-

telrr debt subject to floating interest rates. The other financial instruments of the Group are noninterest-

bearing and. therefore. not sublect to interest rate risk.

201 J SEC Fornt 20-lS
Page 32

,.1 I pho la nd Corporctt ion



Liquid i t l '  R isk
Liquid i t l  r isk is  the r isk that  the Group rv i l l  not  be able to set t le  or  l leet  i ts  obl igat ions on t i r l le  or  at  a

reasonable pr ice.  Management is  responsib le for  l iqu id i t .v .  funding as.rvel l  as set t lement  mal lagement  ln

addi t ion,  n1anagernent  o i . r r . .s '  l iqu id i ty  and funding r isks,  and re lated processes and pol ic ies The Group

txanages i ts  t iq"u ia i ty  r isk based on business needs.  tax,  capi ta l  o I  regulator) '  considerat ions,  i f  appl icable '

through numerous sources of f inance in order to ntaintain flexibil i t l  .

T 'he Group a lso rnainta ins a balance between cont inui ty  of  funding and f lex ib i l i t l ' .  The pol ic l 'o f  the Group

is to frrst exhaust I ines available fiorn afl l l iated companies befbre local bank l ines are availed of' The Group

seeks to manage its l iquid funds through cash planning on a r.veekh basis. The Group trses historical f igures

and experienJes and fbrecasts from its collections and clisburserrents. As parl of its l iquidity risk

Inanagement.  the Group regular l l , ,evaluates i ts  pro jected and actual  casl i  f lou 's .  l t  a lso cont inuousl l 'assesses

condi t ions in  the f lnancia l  rnarkets for  opportuni t ies to pursue f i rnd ra is ing act iv i t ies.  Also.  the Group onl l

places f 'nds in the rno1e1, tnarket" u'hich are exceeding the Group requit 'etnents. Placenlents are strictl l"

inade based on cash p lanning assumpt ions and covers only  a shor t  per iod of  t ime.

ln 20 12, the Company engaged SGV & Co as its external auditor' There rl 'ere no changes in or

disagreernents with accountants on any matter of accounting principles or practices. f lnancral statetnent

disclosure, or auditing scope or pro..iur. during the past f iscal year' Duly authorized representatives of

SGV & Co are expected to be piesent at the meeting where they wil l have the opporlunitv to respond to

appropriate questions.

Sublnission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Dur ing the last  Annual  Stockholders '  Meet ing on 2 Apr i l  2013,  the secur i t l 'ho lders present  and |epresented

approved the appointrnent of SGV & Co. as the Cornpany"s external auditor

The foregoing matter was approved by the security holders present and entit led to vote durins the said

meet ing.

Securit ies of the Cornpan),

The Company's  common shares rvere l is ted on the Phi l ipp ine Stock Exchange on November 23.  2000.  The

trading record of  the cornpany's  shares s ince i t  has been l is ted is  as fo l lows:

1" Ouarter 2no Quarter 3'd Quarter 4tn Ouarter

2010-  h igh
- low

P6 r .50
P47.5 0

P52.00
P44.5  0

P 5 l  . 8 0
P23,25

P73.-s0
P44.40

2 0 1 1 -  h i g h
- lou'

P54.10
P 5 3 . 5  0

P50.00
P45.00

P42.00
P3 7 .95

D 1  1  ) <

P34.20

2 0 1 2 -  h i g h
- lor'v

P28 .95
P28 .95

P28 .60
P28 .50

P30.00
P30.00

P26.50
P I  9 .50

2 0 1 3 -  h i g h
- lorv

P29 .25
P  l  5 .00

P23.00
P14,64

P48 .00
P20.00

P44.00
P2 i .00

r The Conpany declared a l55oh stock clividend to all shareholders of record as of 06 October 200 l.

equivalent  to  76.322.000 common shares

The c los ing pr ice of  the Company's  comnton shares as of  20 January 20 l4  ( the last  t rading date)  is  P17 48

per share.

The tota l  number of  shareholders of  common shares.  as of  30 June 2014 is  7 l  and shares outstanding are

3.35g.226.211of rvhich 1,429,220,281shares are l isted with the Phil ippine Stock Exchange.
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The top 20 regis tered stockholders of  the Companv as of  Decernber 31.201'1 are as fo l lor i 's :

Name of Shareholder

1.  Masr ickstarCorPorat ion

2.  PCD Nominee CorPorat ion:

3.  Alphaland Hold ings (Singapore)  Pte.  Ltd.

l .  Boerstar  Corporat  ion

5.  D.  M.  Wenceslao and Associates.  Inc.

6. RVO Capital Ventures Corporation

1 .  Credi t  Suisse (Singapore)  L imi ted

8 .  Azu res la rCo tpo ra t t on

9.  Major  Hold ings CotPorat ton

10.  Major  Propert ies,  l r tc .

I  l .  Ev iota.  F idel  &ior  L i l ia

12.  De Ocarnpo,  Rosal inda

13.  Ang,  Jason Te

14.  Castro.  Mar ia Ri ta

15.  De Pio.  Annaive Ezra

16.  Dumandan.  Marcos M.

17.  Santos.  Manuel  M.

18.  Siasat .  Mar iani to Enr ique P.

19.  Sucgang,  Ruel

20. Salingay'. Henry'

No. of Shares

109.112.340
5 19 .744.894
209.564.23 3
r67 .788.430
141 .315.100
| 12,656,713
49,608.000

28.062.63 6

5 .495.050
.1.504.950

12.200
6 . 1  0 0

5.000
3,050
3.050
3.050
3.050
3,050
3.050
2.5  50

tA

3  5 . 7 5 %

)6.199',o

r0 .56%
8. ,15%

1.130 ln

7 .19To

2 . 5 0 %

t . 1 1 %

0.28%

0 "23o/o
0.00e,,o

0.000,,ir

0 .00%

0,00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.000,6

0.00%

0.00%

Div idends

There has been no proposed act ion or  resolut ion re lat ing to the declarat ion ofd iv idends for  the et tsu ins veal ' .

The Company has not declared dividends in the past tr 'vo fiscal years.

There are no restrictions on the Corporation that l imit the pa1'nlent of dividends on Common shares. The

Cornpanl,, has re-invested its retained earnings for rvorking capital requirements as well as the expansion of

i t s  ope ra t i ons  and  l ac i l i t i es .

Recent  Sale of  Unregistered or  Exempt Secur i t ies Inc luding Recent  Issuance of  Secur i t ies Const i tu t ing an

Exerrpt Transaction

There were no recent  sa les of  unregistered or  exelnpt  secur i t ies inc luding recent  issuances of  secur i t ies

constituting an exempt Transaction.

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisit ions, and Similar Maters

There are no lnaters or actions to be taken up in the annual stockholders' meeting rvith respect to merger,

consol idat ion.  acquis i ton by sale.  or  l iqu idat ion of  the Cornpany.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There are no maters or  act ions to be taken up in  the annual  s tockholders '  meet ing rv i th  tespect  o acquis i t ion

or disposition of any propert;" by the Company.
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Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No act ion is  to  be taken wi th fespect  to  the restatement  of  an) '  asset .  capi ta l ,  or  sutp lus account  of  the

Cor-uoanr..

D. OTHERMATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

(a )  App rova lo f  t he  M inu tes  o f  t he  2013  annua l  mee t i ng  o f  s tockho lde rs  he ld  on  Ap r i l  2 .2013  cove r i ng  the

fbllolving Inaters:
i )  Annual  repor t :
i i )  Rat i f icat ion and approval  of  a l l  resolut ions of  the Board and the Execut ive Cotr rn i t tee,  and a l l  acts of

the N4anagernent  af ter  the annual  s tockholders '  meet ing on Apr i l  2 .2013 unt i l  the annual  s tockholders '

r r . reet ing on August  28.2014,
ii i) Election of the members of the Board. including the Independent Directors; and

iv) Election of the external auditor.

(b)  Approval  of  rhe annual  repor l  o f  the Management fbr  the year  ending December 31.  2013.  inc luding the

2013 audi ted f inancia l  s tatements.

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

1'here are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting that wil l not require the vote of the

stockholders as ofthe record date.

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, By-laws, or Other Documents

(a) Arrendment to the Third Article of the Articles of lncorporation to reflect the corrplete address of the

principal offlce of the Cornpany such that. as amended, the Third Article rvil l  read as follou's:

"THIRD: That the place rvhere the principal office of the

corporation is to be established or located is at the Penthouse.

Alphaland Southgate Torver ,  2258 Chino Roces Avenue corner  EDSA,

Makat i  Ci tv .  (as amended on 23 Decernber 2009 and

(b) The Board also approved the amendntent of Section 6. Article l l l  of the Compan-v-'s By-larvs to allorv

participation of rnembers of the Board of Directors in board meetings by conference call or sir"nilar means

such that .  as amended,  Sect ion 6 of  Ar t ic le  I I I  wi l l  read as fo l lo lvs:

"section 6. Quorum - A majority of the number of directors,

as fixed in the Articles of Incorporation shall corrstitute a quorum tbr

the transaction of corporate business. and every decision of at least a

rna.lority of the directors present at a meeting at u'hich there ts a

quorutn shall be valid as a corporate act, except for the election of

officers lvhich shall require the vote of a majority of all members of the

Board. Directors may participate in board meetings by conference call

or  other  s imi lar  means."

Item 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratif ication of all resolutions of the Board and the Executive Committee. as r'vell as the acts of the

Management t0 implement  the resolut ions af ter  the annual  s tockholders '  meet ing on Apr i l  2 ,2013 unt i l  the

annual  s tockholders '  meet ing on August  28,2011.
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Thc resolut ions of  the Board and the Erecut ive comnl i t tee involve

i) Approval of contracts. projects. investments, and other acts $hich have been covered bi, '

d isc losures to the PSE and the SEC:
i i )  Treasury lnat ters.  inc luding borrorv ings.  openir tg of  accounts and bank t ransact ions:  and

i i i )  Housekeeping t rat ters.  inctuding the appointment  of  s ignator ies and amendlnents thereof- .

(b)  Elect ion of  the rnernbers of  the Board.  inc luding the independent  d i recto ls .  tbr  the errsLr i r rs  Vear '

(c)  Elect ion of the external  audi tor .

(d)  Adopt ion of  the stock opt ion p lan.

Item 19. Voting Procedures

The vote requi red fbr  acts requi r ing srockholders approval  is  at  least  a rna- ior i t r "  o f  the outstanding capi ta l

s tock.

In the e lect ion of  d i rectors.  the f i f teen (15)  nominees wi t l t  the greatest  nutnber of  votes rv i l l  be e lected

d i rectors.

Ever-,- stockholder entit led is entit led to one vote. Horvever, rvith respect to the election of directors. the

stockholders may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected. or he

r1a1,,cumulat. 5,uid rhur., and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected. or

he may d is t r ibute them on the same pr inc ip le among as manv candidates as he shal l  see f i t ;  prov ided.  that  the

total nuniber of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares or'vned b,v hirri as shown in the

books of  the Corporat ion mul t ip l ied by ' the number of  d i rectors to be e lected.

Thc rnethod of  count ing the votes of  the shareholders shal l  be in  accordance u i th the seneral  prov is ions of

the Corporat ion Code of  tn .  Rni t ipp ines.  Method of  vot ing shal l  be conducted b1 '  shorv of  hands unless a

shareholder  requi res a pol l  to  be made on any act ion.  In  sucl t  case.  the rnethod of  courr t i r rg votes shal l  be

done bv secret. Counting of votes shall be supervised by the Corporate SecretarY and'/or Assistant Corporate

Secretary u,ith the assistance of representatives fiorn Sycip Gones Velayo and Co.

Conrpl iance u ' i th  Leading Pract ices on Good Governance

The Board of Directors and Management of the Company' recognize that good colporate govemance is kel

to achiev ing the Cornpan.v 's  object ive of  maximiz ing shareholder  value.  The inst i tu t ion of  the Code on

Corporate Gouernun." seeks to provide the process and structure by which the business and affairs of the

Coprpanv are directed and rnanaged. in order to enhance long-ternl shareholder value tlrrouglt the

enhancernent of cotporate perlbrmance and accountabil ity.

Corrpliance r,vith the Code of Corporate Governance is ensured by the Corporate Compliance Officer in

coordination rvith the Chainnan and President of the Cornpany. Regular meetitrqs are made betrveen

Managernent and the Board of Directors. to review and evaluate the Cornpany's performance and address

tey,policl ' l .natters. The Board is provided rvith timely and complete information for each meeting. Each

director has direct access to the advice and services of management and the corporate secretary-, and in

appropriate circurnstances, seek independent professional advice concerning the Conlpany's affairs.

All directors are required to submit themselves for re-election every y'ear. In consideration for their re-

election. the nomination comrnittee revieu"s anci presents attendance and par-ticipation in n.reetings of the

Company.

All directors are briefed b.v Management on the Companl"s business operatiolls as i l 'el l as a regular tour of

the Company's  ntanufactur ing operat ions.

'fhe 
audit committee first revie'uvs the Company's audited financials. who then recol.nmends approval frorn

the board of directors before they' are presented to the stockholders of the Companl'. It is also the audlt

cornrr i t tee.  u 'h ich ensures independence and ob. iect iv i ty '  o f  the external  audi tors.
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The Corrpan), is contlnLlallv seeking treasures of improving is corporate governance to fur-ther enhance

corporate"p.ifor,.,.,u,.,.. and' accouniabil ity. The Directors and Management have been encouraged to

regularly, attend colporate governance senrrnars and corporate governance consultants on methods bv rvhich

it can enhance rt corporate performance and accountabil ity'

No cleviation fi-orn the Cornpany's Manual Code of Corporate Governance has been noted. The Cornpany's

Manual  on Corporate Governance rvas amended on February 2 l ,20l l
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After reasonable irrquiry,and to the best of rn;- knou'ledge and belief. I cenif,v that the information set forlh

in t l i is  repor t  is  t rue.  co lnplete and corect .  1 ' l t is  repor t  is  s igned in the Cl ty 'o f  Makat i  on _ -_- '

ALPHALAND CORPORATION
(formerly Macondray Plastics, Inc,)

I  ssuer

By: RODOLFO MA. A. PONFERRADA
Corporate Secretary

)0 I I SEC Fornr 20-lS
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Af icr  rcasonl ib le inqui t ' r 'and t t - r  the best  o i ' r l r  knorv ledge and bel ic l .  I

in  th is  repor t  is  t rue.  cornpiete and corect .  This  repon is  s igned in the C
cerli l) that the
irr of l lakaii on

infornrat ion set  lonh
. i  Ausus t  1014 .

ALPFIALAND COR PORATION
(formerly, Macondrat' Plastics. I nc./

l lv: RODOI-FOil\?A. A. PONFE RR'\DA
Corli,orate Secretarr

\\i
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

l ,  EDGARDO J.  ANGAM, Fi l ip ino,  of  legal  age,  wi th  address at  22lF ACCRALAW
Tower,  Second Ave. ,  cor .30th St . ,  Crescent  Park West ,  Boni fac io Global  Ci ty ,  Taguig,  a f ter
having been sworn to in  accordance wi th law,  hereby depose and state that :

1.  I  am nominated for  e lect ion as lndependent  Di rector  of  A lphaland Corporat ion { the
"Corporat ion")  for  i ts  upcoming annual  s tockholders '  meet ing to be held on 28
August  2014.

2.  I  am also af f i l ia ted wi th the fo l lowing companies:

3.  I  possess a l l  the qual i f icat ions and none of  the d isqual i f icat ios to  serve as an
Independent  Di rector  of  the Corporat ion as prov ided for  in  Sect ion 38 of  the
Secur i t ies Regulat ions Code ("SRC")and i ts  lmplement ing Rules and Regulat ions
("rRR").

4.  lshal l  fa i th fu l ly  and d i l igent ly  comply wi th my dut ies and responsib i l i t ies as an
lndependent  Di rector  under  the SRC and i ts  lRR.

5.  I  shal l  in form the Corporate Secretary /Assis tant  Corporate Secretary of  the
Corporat ion of  any changes in  the above-ment ioned in format ion wi th in f ive {5)  days
from its occurrence.

Done th is dd,U6 0 6 2011- atMakaticity.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me th is
Makat i  Ci ty ,  a f f iant  exhib i t ing to me h is  TIN No.  104-085-279.

lt"9
Doc No. !+
Page NoJ>\; -
eook ruo.6fuP
Series 0n7014.

rlliiLli!

$i.l itl,
t:rli,f- l.l-i

r.lvlii.li eo

Company Position/Relationship Period of Service
ACCRA Law 1972 to present

Integrated Bar  of  the Phi l ipp ines President t979
ASEAN Law Associat ion President 1980
U n ive rs i ty  of  the P h i l ipp in es President 1981 to 1987
Phi l ipp ine Nat ionai  Bank Chairman 1989 to 1999

San Miguel  Corporat ion Director
Ma laya n lnsurance Co. ,  Inc. D irecto r
Riza l  Commerc ia l  Ba n k ing Corporat ion D i rector
The Insular  L i fe  Assurance CompanV, Ltd. D i rector
I B M  P  h i l i p p i n e s Director

k"kku'
Affiant
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTQR

l ,  ROY JOSEPH M, RAFOLS, Fi l ip ino, of legal  age, with address at  1906 EdadesTower,
Amorsolo Drive, Rockwell Center, Makati City, after having been sworn to in accordance
with law, hereby depose and state that:

1.  I  am nominated for elect ion as Independent Director of  Alphaland Corporat ion ( the
"Corporat ion") for i ts upcoming annual stockholders '  meet ing to be held on 28
August 2014.

2,  lam a lso  a f f i l i a ted  w i th  the  fo l low ing  company:

3. I  possess al l  the qual i f icat ions and none of the disqual i f icat ios to serve as an
Independent Director of  the Corporat ion as provided for in Sect ion 38 of the
Securi t ies Regulat ions Code ("SRC")and i ts lmplement ing Rules and Regulat ions
( " rRR" ) .

4.  lshal l  fa i thful ly and di l igent ly comply with my dut ies and res po nsibi l i t ies as an
Independent Director under the SRC and i ts lRR.

5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary /Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Corporat ion of  any changes in the above-ment ioned informat ion within f ive (5) days
f rom i ts  occurrence.

at Makati City.Do ne th is day of :

ROY J

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me th is
lrU$a i i;0t4

Makat i  Ci ty ,  a f f iant  exhib i t ing to me h is  TIN No.  f23- IO3-272.
FAS8ff i  f i i rV

a b
D o c  N o .  ,  r j

Paqe NoF; r, t
eoot l r@vl l
Series on 2014.
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Company Position/Relationship Period of Service
Atok-Blg Wedge Co. ,  Inc. Independent Directo r 20 May 2013 to Present
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

l ,  MARGARITO B.  TEVES,  F i l ip ino ,  o f  lega i  age,  w i th  address  a t  Great  Wal l  Adver t i s ing
Bu i ld ing ,  136 Yaka l  S t ree t ,  Makat i  C i ty ,  a f te r  hav ing  been sworn  to  in  accordance w i th  law,
herebv  deDose and s ta te  tha t :

I  arn an Independent  Di rector  of  A lphaland Corporat ion ( the "Corporat ion") .

I  am also a{ f i l ia ted wi th the fo l lowing companies:

1 .

2.

Company Position/Relationsh Period of Service
Petron Independent  Di rector May 20,  2014 to present
Ba nk of  Commun rcat ions Board Adviser July  26,  2013 to present
At lant ic  Aurum Investments
Phi l ipp ines Corporat ion

Independent  Di rector July  19,  2013 to present

AB Cap i ta l  lnves tment  Corp . Independent  D i rec tor June 29, 2012 to present
San Migue l  Corpora t ion Independent  D i rec tor June 14 ,  2012 to  p resent

The Wal lace Business Forum Manag ing  D i rec tor March  L ,  2012 to  p resent

Think Ta nk Chai rman 1998 to  2000 i  2010 to

Alphala nd Eales in ls land Club,

L!!.
Alpha land Mar ina Club,  lnc

Independent  Di rector

Independent  o i recto i  
-

2012 -  Present

2012 -  Present
Atok  B ig  Wedge Co. ,  Inc . Independent  Di rector 2011 -  Present
The C i ty  C lub  a t  A lpha la  nd
M akat i  P lace ,  lnc .

Independent  Di rector 2011. - Present

3.  I  possess a l l  the qual i f icat ions and none of  the d isqual i f icat ios to  serve as an
Independent  Di rector  of  the Corporat ion as prov ided for  in  Sect ion 38 of  the
Secur i t ies Regulat ions code ("SRC")and i ts  lmplement ing Rules and Regulat ions
1"rR R" L

4.  lshal l  fa i th fu l ly  and d i l igent ly  comply wi th my dut ies and responsib i l i t ies as an
Independent  Di rector  under  the SRC and i ts  lRR.

5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary /Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Corporat ion of  any changes in  the above-ment ioned in format ion wi th in f ive (5)  days
from i ts  occurrence.

Done th is day of JLIL ? ' 1ni{
at Makati City

MARGARITO

S U B S C R I B E D  A N D  S W O R N
Makat i  Ci ty ,  a f f iant  exhib i t ing to me
DFA-M ani la .

to  be fore  me th is
his Passpor t  No.  E80095211 issued 13 Apr i l  2010 at

o o c r u o p ,
Page No.1*;
Book No lV ;
Series on 2014.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

l, cREGORIO M. ARANETA lll, Filipino, of legal age, with address at 21lF Citibank
Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City, after having been sworn to in accordance with law,

hereby depose and state that :

L.  I  am nominated for  e lect ion as Independent  Di rector  of  A lphaland Corporat ion ( the

"Corporat ion")  for  i ts  upcoming annual  s tockholders '  meet ing to be held on 28
August 2014.

2.  lam also af f i l ia ted wi th the fo l lowing companies:

3.  I  possess a l l  the qual i f icat ions and none of  the d isqual i f icat ios to  serve as an

lndependent Director of the Corporation as provided for in Section 38 of the
Secur i t ies Regulat ions Code ("SRC")and i ts  lmplement ing Rules and Regulat ions
("rRR").

4.  lshal l  fa i thful ly and di l igent ly comply with my dut ies and responsibi l i t ies as an
Independent Director under the SRC and i ts lRR.

5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary /Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Corporat ion of  any changes in the above-ment ioned informat ion within f ive (5) days
from its occu rrence.

Done th is day of ArlG 0 1 201{a t  M a

M. ARANETA III
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me th is
Makati City, affiant exhibiting to me his TIN No. 136-998-184.
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series on 2014.

Not rry
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:ember  31 .201{
thouse, AIohalin.l
Tcrrcr, Mrka;l Clfr

No.59384
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Company Position/Relationship Period of Service
Araneta Properties, Inc. Chairman/Chief Executive

Officer
2010 to present

ARAZA Resources Corporation President /Chai rman 2006 to present

Carmel  Development ,  Inc. P resid e nt/Cha irm a n 2007 to present

Gregorio Ara neta Inc. Chairman 2000 to present

Gregorio Ara neta
Management Corporat ion

Chairman 2013to present

Gamma Propert ies,  Inc. Chairman 2000 to present



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

l, VICTOR C. MACALINCAG, Filipino, of legal age, with address at 31 Don Vicente
Ruf ino Avenue,  Cor inth ian Gardens,  Quezon Ci ty ,  a f ter  having been sworn to in  accordance
wi th law,  hereby depose and state that :

1.  I  am nominated for  e lect ion as Independent  Di rector  of  A lphaland Corporat ion ( the

"Corporat ion")  for  i ts  upcoming annual  s tockholders '  meet ing to be held on 28
AuBust  2014.

2.  lam also af f i l ia ted wi th the fo l lowing companies:

4 .

5 .

3 . I  possess al l  the qual i f icat ions and none of the disqual i f icat ios to serve as an
Independent Director of the Corporation as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securi t ies Regulat ions Code ("SRC")and i ts lmplement ing Rules and Regulat ions
("rRR" ) .

lshal l  fa i thful ly and di l igent ly comply with my dut ies and respo nsibi l i t ies as an
Indeoendent Director under the SRC and i ts lRR.

I shall inform the Corporate Secretary /Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Corporat ion of  any changes in the above-ment ioned informat ion within f ive (5) days
from its occu rrence.

Done th is day of at  Makat i  Ci ty .

me this AUGO4

/ r

R
VICTOR C. MACALINCAG

Affia nt

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before
Makati  City, aff iant exhibit ing to me his TIN No.
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Series on 2014.
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Company Position/Relationship Period of
Setvice

Crown Equities, Inc. Independent Directot Since 2003
Semirara Mining Corporation Independent Director Since 2002
Republic Glass Holdinqs, Corp. Independent DLector Since 2007

S EM Caleca Power Corporarion Independent Directot Since 201 I
Ceres Property Venture, Inc. Independent Director Slnce ztr l  I

ISM Commurucations Corporatron Independent Directot Since 2011
Manaqement Assoc. of the Phil. Member Since 2002
One \X/ealthv Natron (OWN) Balanced Fund Director Snce 2012
Atok-Brq Wedge Co., Inc. Independent Director Since 2012
Asian Alliance Iflvestment Corp. Independent Directot Since 2013
PhilWeb Corporation Independent Director Since 2014


